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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE

December 17, 2008

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen, and Citizens of the City
of Kingsport, Tennessee:

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish within six months of the
close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that
requirement, we hereby issue the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of
Kingsport for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City of
Kingsport. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of ail of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, management of the City of Kingsport has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government's
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation
of the City of Kingsport's financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of
internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Kingsport's comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management,
we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and
reliable in all material respects.

Blackburn, Childers & Steagall, PLC, a firm of licensed certified public accountants, have issued
an unqualified (“clean”) opinion on the City of Kingsport's financial statements for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008. The independent auditors’ report is located at the front of the financial

section of this report.

The independent audit of the financiaf statements of the City of Kingsport was part of a broader,
federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor
agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to
report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited
government's internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on
internal controts and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These
reports are available in the compliance report section of this CAFR.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The City of Kingsport's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of
the independent auditors.

City Halt 225 West Center Street  Kingsport, TN 37660-4237 (423) 2299400
The Model City - Built by design and planning for the future.
|



Profile of the Government

The City of Kingsport was incorporated in 1917 and operates under a council-manager form of
government. It is located in the northeast part of the state. The City currently occupies a land
area of approximately 47 square miles and serves a population of 44,435. Its established urban
growth boundary encompasses 105 square miles which provides potential areas for the City to
expand its corporate limits in the future. The City is authorized by state statutes to levy a property
tax on both real and personal properties located within its boundaries. It is also empowered by
state statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed
appropriate by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen.

The City of Kingsport has operated under the council-manager form of government since 1917.
Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in the Board of Mayor and Aldermen {BMA)
consisting of the mayor and six other members. The BMA is responsible, among other things, for
passing ordinances, resolutions, adopting the budget, appointing committees, and hiring the City
Manager. The City's Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the
BMA, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City and for appointing the heads of various
departments. The BMA is elected on a non-partisan basis. Board members serve four-year
staggered terms, with an election every two years. The Mayaor is elected to serve a two-year
term. The City Manager serves at the pleasure of the Board.

The City of Kingsport provides a full range of services, including police, fire and rescue,
elementary and secondary education, street construction and maintenance, planning and zoning,
parks and recreation, cuitural events and general administrative services. [n addition, water and
sewer service, solid waste collection, convention center and golf course are provided under an
Enterprise Fund concept with user charges established by the BMA to ensure adequate coverage
of operating expenses and payments on outstanding debt. Vehicle maintenance and replacement
and self-insurance activities are provided through Internal Service Funds. The City of Kingsport
provides water and sewer service and solid waste collection service outside the city limits.

The City is financially accountable for two legally separate organizations; the Industrial
Development Board of Kingsport and the Emergency Communications District of Kingsport. Both
of these organizations are reported separately within the City's financial statements. Additional
information on these legally separate entities can be found in the notes to the financial statements

(see note 1.A).

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Kingsport's financial planning and
control. All departments of the City of Kingsport are required to submit requests for appropriation
to the City Manager. The City Manager uses these requests as the starting point for developing a
proposed budget. The City Manager then presents this proposed budget to the BMA for review by
May 15" The BMA is required to hold two public hearings on the proposed budget and to adopt a
final budget no fater than June 30, the close of the City of Kingsport's fiscal year. The
appropriation budget is prepared by fund, function and department. The City Manager may make
transfers of appropriations within a department and between departments within any fund.
Transfers of appropriations between funds, however, require the approval of the BMA. Budget-to-
actual comparisons are provided in this report. The general fund comparison is presented on
pages 30 through 32 as part of the basic financial statements for the City's funds.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of

Kingsport operates.



Local Economy. The City of Kingsport encompasses approximately 47 square miles and has an
estimated 2008 population of 44,435 with 173,694 persons residing within a 5 mile radius of the
existing City limits. It is located in northeast Tennessee and is part of a Metropolitan Statistical
Area (MSA) Kingsport — Bristol, TN — Bristol, VA. This MSA has a population of approximately
302,000. On a regional basis, there are approximately 401,000 persons living within a radius of
25 miles, 863,000 persons living within a radius of 50 miles and 1,305,000 persons living within a
radius of 75 miles.

As noted in the 2007 annual report, Kingsport has long served as a major commercial retail hub,
and that trend strengthened in 2008 with significant new investments, including Best Buy,
Decorators Warehouse, Michael's, Panera Bread, Ulta Cosmetics, Starbucks and Stir Fry Café.

The influx of more than $370 million in new investment since 2006, heavily weighted towards new
retail and commercial office, appears to be paying off in the form of significantly increased sales
tax collections in Kingsport despite the rough fiscal weather nationally. Although sales tax
collections were relatively flat in FY 2008 as compared with FY2007, collections for the first 5
months of FY2009 are running in excess of 10% above the same period for F Y2008,

Meanwhile, an announced expansion of the existing 630,000 square foot Kingsport Town Center
mall continues on track to begin in the first quarter of 2009 according to developers, adding tens
of thousands of square feet of new retail space.

On the home front, as many states and localities struggle with housing depreciation, Kingsport
home values continued to climb. According to the September 2008 Federal Housing Finance
Agency Report, for the past 12 months, Kingspori area housing prices are up 3.93 percent, with a
five-year appreciation rate of 32.41 percent.

And, at the same time, Kingsport was on track for more than 100 new single family housing
starts, with total residential building permits valued at $25.31 million issued through the first 10
months of the year. Average single-family construction permit value in 2008 is $183,920.

Throughout its history, the foundation of Kingsport's prosperity has always rested with the
strength of its manufacturing center. The largest member of that sector, Eastman Chemical
Company, has begun work on Project Reinvest, a $1.3 billion project to expand production fines,
reduce production bottlenecks, improve air quality and modernize base infrastructure.

Among the first projects was a new $20 million plant to produce a new, proprietary plastic
product. Project Reinvest will add $10.4 million in property tax revenues to the city over the next
13 years in addition to $8.2 million currently paid annually by the firm.

Ten years ago, Eastman accounted for approximately 32% of the total property taxes received by
the City. Even though the amount of propetty taxes they pay to the City has increased
significantly since that time, they cumently contribute approximately 28% of the total property
taxes. This reduction is attributed to an increased diversification of the City's tax base as other
industries and developments continue to expand within the City.

Long-term Financial Planning. During the FY2008 and FY2009 budget planning processes, the
BMA adopted multi-year capital improvement plans (CIP) for its City operations. Funding for the
water and sewer CIP consists of gradua! annual rate increases and savings realized from
declining annual debt service expenditures. This strategy is utilized to provide an annual funding
source for non major capital expenditures and reserve issuance of new debt obligation for large

major capital projects.

As a part of the budget process, the BMA re-evaluated the previous CIP for general government
and school related activities to address needed improvements to existing City facilities, roads and
infrastructure and several new economic development initiatives: a new higher education center,



health professions education building, and initial property requisition for future public facilities. As
a result, approximately $19,000,000 in new general debt was issued to fund these improvements.
Even with this significant increase in debt, the total outstanding general obiigation debt is within
the adopted debt limits as specified in the BMA's debt management policy.

The City of Kingsport has adopted a comprehensive set of financial policies to guide its
operations. One of the primary policies that have enabled the City to develop these CiPs, is the
adoption of a General Fund Reserve target of $11,400,000 with a further restriction that the City
will not fund any recurring operating expenditures with the use of one-time revenues. Having this
reserve balance has given the City the flexibility to address cash flow and emergency needs and
to take advantage of significant grant opportunities that have matching requirements. In addition,
based on the current debt amortization schedules, it is projected that the City's debt service
expenditures will be reduced by approximately $3,700,000 hy the end of FY2010. The annual
savings from the debt service reductions have been included in the funding strategies for the CIP.

Major Initiatives

During the summer of 2008, construction was completed on a new 40,000 square feet Regional
Center for Health Professions building, the first structure in Kingsport's Downtown Academic
Village. The $4.3 million facility, which opened in the fall 2008, houses nearly 400 students
studying nursing and medical technology degrees in partnership with Northeast State Technical
Community College and King College.

Meanwhile, work is now underway on a $13 million Kingsport Center for Higher Ecucation that
wili host at least five private and public colleges and universities offering baccalaureate and

higher degrees.

This effort was undertaken as a major step forward in workforce development, and is an
expansion of the six-year-old Regional Center for Applied Technology (RCAT) located adjacent to
the Academic Village. RCAT currently hosts 850 plus students studying a variety of associate
degree level programming.

Kingsport's academic campus also grew further in 2008, with the privately funded Regional
Center for Applied Manufacturing set to come online in 2009, providing tailored educational
programming for local employers.

Also in 2008, Kingsport embarked on a new effort to expand tourism by approving a 32,000
square feet MeadowView Conference Center expansion, a project that builds on the synergy of a
new 110-room expansion at the adjoining, but privately owned, hotel.

The $15.3 milion Conference Center expansion should result in an annual return greater than
$883,000 while bolstering tourism, the fourth largest industry in Sultivan County. Construction is
expected to begin during the spring 2009.

Kingsport's Board and Mayor and Aldermen, working from a substantial roll off in debt service
over the next few years, has also chosen to reinvest in other key segments, inciuding road
infrastructure, a community and non-profit center and a downtown parking garage necessitated
by business and education expansion in the downtown area.

Awards and Acknowledgements

Awards. The Government Finance Officers’ Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of
Kingsport for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFRY) for the fisca! year ended June 30,
2007. This was the eighth consecutive year that the City of Kingsport has achieved this
prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must

4



publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This
report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements.

A Cerificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current
comprehensive annual financial report continves to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

In addition, the City also received the GFOA's Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its
annual budget document dated July 1, 2007. The annual budget document dated July 1, 2008
has been submitted to the GFOA for review and it is anticipated that it will also receive this award.
In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the City's budget document
was judged to be proficient in several categories, including as a policy document, a financial plan,
an operations guide, and a communications device.

Acknowledgment. The preparation of the CAFR could not have been accomplished without the
efforts and dedication of the staff of the Department of Finance. We would like to express our
appreciation to the Finance staff and other personnel from various departments, agencies, and
authorities that assisted in its preparation. Also, we would like to thank the Board of Mayor and
Aldermen for their guidance and support.

Respectfully submitted,

John G. Campbell
Cify Manager

-

James H. Demming
City Recorder/CFO
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE

HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION

The City of Kingsport was incorporated in 1917 and has been operated under the
Council-Manager form of government since that time. The Board of Mayor and Aldermen was
expanded from five to seven members through a Charter amendment effective May 15, 1973.
On the third Tuesday in May of each odd numbered year three members are elected by the
qualified voters of the City for a four-year term and the mayor is elected for a two-year term
beginning at the first regular meeting of the Board in July following the election. The Board
appoints a City Manager who is responsible for the administration of the City according to the
Charter and Ordinances in effect. The City Manager appoints various department heads,
officials and employees to operate the City except for the Education Department. The Board of
Education, consisting of five members with two or three elected by the qualified voters of the
City each odd number year, is responsible for the hiring of a Director of Schools and other
personnel, formulating policies and operating the school system within the framework of State

statutes and the City Charter and Code.

Pay scales for employees and officials of all departmenits are approved by the Board of

Mayor and Aldermen, and all appropriations of funds are made by the Board.
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Blackburn,
Childers &
== Steagall, PLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

REGIONAL EXPERTISE - LOCAL SERVICE

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Honorabie Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Kingsport
Kingsport, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Kingsport, Tennessee (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008,
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions
on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Emergency
Communications District {the ECD), which represent 16 percent, 22 percent, and 13 percent, respectively, of
the assets, net assets, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been fumished to us, and our opinion, insofar as
it relates to the amounts included for the ECD, is based on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the basic financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the govemmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component uriits, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the general
fund, general purpose schoot fund, and the debt service fund for the year then ended, in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Johnson City  801B Sunset Drive, P.O. Box 3745, Johnson City, TN 37602-3745 (423) 282-4511 Fax (423) 283-4532
' (423) 246-1725 Fax (423) 245-2839

Kingsport 440 E. Sullivan Street, Kingsport, TN 37660
Greeneville 1140 Tusculum Boulevard, Greeneville, TN 377454039 (423) 638-8516 Fax (423) 638-3361

website = hrep://www.BCScpg.com e-maik: BCS@BCScpa.com



Independent Auditors’ Report
Page 2

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 17,

2008, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its -

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the intemal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit pefformed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and schedules of funding
progress on pages 12 through 21, 109, and 110 through 111, respectively, are not a required part of the basic
financial statements but are supplementary information réquired by accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. We and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of
the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on
it. _

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor
fund financial statements, supplemental information and statistical section are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule
of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S,
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments; and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City. The combining and
individua! non-major fund financial statements, the supplemental information, including the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other
auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements, and in our opinioh, based on our audit and the report of
other auditors, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial staterments taken as a
whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by
us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on them.

BLACKBURN, CHIL.DERS & STEAGALL, PLC

December 17, 2008

11



CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

(amounts expressed in thousands)

As management of the City of Kingsport (the City), we offer readers of the City's financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2008. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional
ir;\fonnation that we have fumished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 1 through 5 of
this report.

Financial Highlights

« The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $441,531
(net assets). Of this amount, $15,901 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the City's ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

« The City's total net assets increased by $8,716.

« As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $71,330 an increase of $2,711 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately
74% of this total amount, $52,978, is available for spending at the City’s discretion (unreserved fund
balance).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $14,848 or
22% of total general fund expenditures including transfers out.

» The City's total gross debt increased by $4,893 (4%) during the current fiscal year primarily due to
issuance of bonds for construction of a Higher Education Center in Downtown Kingsport.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial
statements. The City's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the

City's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only resuit in cash flows in future fiscal periods {e.g.,
uncollected taxes or eamed but unused vacation leave, etc.).
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

{(amounts expressed in thousands)

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes, licenses and permits, and intergovernmental revenues {governmental aclivities} from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include geheral government,
public safety, public works, highway transportation planning, economic and physical development, culture
and recreation and education. The business-type activities of the City include water, sewer, solid waste,
conference center and golf course. The government-wide financial statements can be found cn pages 22
and 23 of this report.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compiiance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds
of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds,

Governmental funds

Govermnmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the citywide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as
well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a City's near-term financing requirements. Because the focus of governmental funds is
narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information
presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
govermment-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of
the governments near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this companson between govemmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains twenty-four (24) individual governmental funds. Twenty {20) of these governmental funds
are classified as nonmajor and are summarized under the heading "Other Governmental Funds® in the
governmental fund presentation. information is presented separately in the govenmental fund balance
sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for
the general fund, the general purpose school fund, the capital project fund, the debt service fund and
nonmajor governmentai funds, all of which are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual
fund data for nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in
this report. The basic governmental fund financial staternents can be found on pages 24-34 of this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriation budget for its general and other major special revenue funds.
Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance with this

budget.

13



CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

{amounts expressed in thousands)

Proprietary funds

The City maintains eight (8) different proprietary funds, inciuding enterprise and internal service funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
govemment-wide financial statements, The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water, sewer, solid
waste, convention center and golf course activities. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to
accumulate and allocate costs intemally among the City's various functions. The City uses internat service
funds to account for vehicle maintenance and replacement and self-insurance activities. Because these
services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included
within governmental activities in the govemment-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the govemment-wide financial statements, only in
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information of the waiter, sewer, solid
waste, convention center and golf course activities, which are considered to be major funds of the City.
Conversely, internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary
fund financial statements. Individual fund data for internal service funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages
35-39 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on
pages 40-108 of this report.

Other information

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonrnajor governmenial funds and internal
service funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information. Combining and
individual fund staternents and schedules can be found on pages 112-138 of this report.

Govemment-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a City's financial position. In the
case of the City, assets exceed liabilities by $441,531 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the City's net assets (88%) refiects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land;
buildings, equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City
uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Aithough the City's investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
{amounts expressed in thousands)

City of Kingsport’s Net Assets
Govemmental Activities Business-Type Aclivities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Current and Other Assets $ 143185 $ 137,989 3 24,699 $ 21,524 $ 167,884 § 159,513
Capital Assets . 290,561 279,322 189,984 186,160 480,545 465,482
Total Assets 433,746 417,311 214,683 207,684 648,429 624,995
Long-term Liabilities Outstanding 88,299 71,843 54,309 59,861 142,608 131,704
Other Liabilities 61,255 57,699 3,035 2,777 64,290 60,476
Tota! Liabilities l 149,554 129,542 57,344 62,638 205,898 192,180
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets,
net of Related Debt 251,707 244 856 142,404 133,884 394,111 378,740
Restricted 30,400 33,768 1,119 952 31,519 34,720
Unyrestricted 2,085 9,145 13,816 10,210 15,901 19,355
Total Net Assets $ 284192 $267.760 _$167330 $145046 § 441,531 § 432815

A portion of the City's net assets, $31,519 or (7%) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets $15,901 may be
used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the cument fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all categories of net
assets.

During the current fiscal year, the government's net assets increased by $8,716. Net assets for
govemmental activiies decreased by $3,577 while net assets for business type activities increased by
$12,293. The primary reason for the decrease in net assets in the governmental activities was a result of
recording OPEB liability of $5,426 in accordance with GASB 45. The primary reason for the increase in net
assets in the business-type activities is due to the favorable resuits of the City's water and sewer utility
funds. Water rates increased an average of 2% and sewer rates increased an average of 4% during the
curent fiscal year as part of a continuing rate stabilization plan that wili reduce long-term debt and provide

cash for capital improvements and expansion.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

The following is a summary of financed activities for the City during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008:

City of Kingsport's Change in Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 6449 § 5155 $ 27978 $ 27062 $ 34427 $ 32,217
Operating Grants and Contributions 31,848 29,035 - - 31,848 29,035
Capital Grants and Contributions 6,983 706 2,661 1,632 9,644 2,338
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 43,181 42,857 - - 43,181 42 857
Sales Taxes 27,531 27 570 - - 27,531 27,570
Other Taxes and Intergovernmental 6118 5,069 - - 6,118 5,069
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 3,392 2,801 1,025 1,334 4417 4,135
Grants and Contributions Not ‘
Restricted to Specific Programs 642 713 - - 642 713
Other 1,307 1,344 - 2 1,307 1,346
Total Revenues 127,451 115,250 31,664 30,030 159,116 145,280
Expenses:
Genera! Govemment 10,448 10,185 - - 10,448 10,185
Public Safety 19,845 16,994 - - 19,845 16,994
Public Works 13,371 11,388 - - 13,371 11,388
Highway Transportation Flanning 3121 2,820 - - 3121 2,820
Economic and Physical Development 4,098 3418 - - 4,098 3,418
Culture and Recreation 6,803 5,097 - - 6,803 5,097
Education 66,063 - 60,306 - - 66,063 60,306
Interest on Long-term Debt 3,244 1,470 - - 3,244 1,470
Water - - 8,971 7,910 8,971 7,910
Sewer . - - 7.941 7,582 7.941 7,582
Solid Waste Management - - 3,799 4,432 3,799 4432
MeadowView Conference Resort
and Convention Center - - 1,247 1,230 1,247 1,230
Cattalls at MeadowView Golf Course - - 1,448 1,432 1,448 1,432
Total Expenses 126,993 111,678 23,406 22,586 150,399 134,264
increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
before Transfers 458 3,572 8,258 7,444 8,716 11,016
Transfers {4,035) (3,810% 4,035 3,810 - -
Change in Net Assets (3,577) (238) 12,293 11,254 8,716 11,016
Net Assets, beginning of period 287,769 288,007 145,046 133,792 432 815 424,799
Net Assets, end of period $ 284192 $287,769 $ 157,339 $ 145046 $ 441,531 § 432,815
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental activities

Governmental activities reduced the City's net assets by $3,577. Total governmental revenues increased by
$12,201. However, these increases were not enough to offset all governmental expenditures specifically
depreciation expense and OPEB liabilities. :

Business-type activities
Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $12,293.

« Charges for services for business-type activities increased by $916 (3%} over the previous fiscal year.

e The City budgeted and achieved an overall increase in net income of the water and sewer funds to
provide funds for capital expansion and debt repayments as indicated in the Statement of Cash Flows
located oh pages 38 and 39 of this report.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of Kingsport’s financing
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a City's net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. As of the end of the current fiscal year, the
City of Kingsport's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $71,330, an increase of
$2,711 in comparison with the piior year. Approximately 74% of this total amount, $52,978, constitutes
unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the City's discretion. However, of this
unreserved amount $30,074 represents funds designated to be used in various capital projects. The
remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for spending because it has already
been committed to; 1) advances to golf course ($3,070}, 2) liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the
prior period ($14,132) and for 3} a variety of other restricted purposes ($1,150).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund
balance of the General Fund was $14,848 while total fund balance reached $18,240. As a matter of the
General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance
to total fund expenditures and transfers out.

Unreserved fund balance represents 22% of total general fund expenditures and transfers out, while total
fund balance represents 27% of that same amount. During 2008, the fund balance of the City's General
Fund decreased by $2,679. Of this $2,000 represents fund balance appropriations for a new Higher
Education Building.

The general-purpose school fund has a total fund balance of $4,142, of which most is unreserved. The net
decrease in fund balance during the current year in the general-purpose school fund was $399.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

The capital prpject fund has a total fund balance of $42,922 of which $12,848 is encumbered at year-end
and $30,074 is unreserved but designated for approved capital projects. The net increase in this fund
balance of $5,510 was primarily due to new bonds issued during the year.

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $1,173. This represents an increase of $128 as compared
to the previous fiscal year. This increase is primarily a result of investment earnings on bond proceeds.
Debt service expenditures (principal and interest) totaled $14,642 for fiscal year 2008. This was
approximately $4,684 more than the debt service expenditures paid in fiscal year 2007. However, $4,000 of
this is attributed to early payoff of a short term capital outlay note after long term bonds were issued.

Nonmajor (other) govemmental funds have a fund balance of $4,855. The net increase in fund balance
during the cuirent year in nonmajor governmental funds was $151.

Proprietary funds

The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the governrent-wide financial
statements, but in more detail. :

Unrestricted net assets of the watér and sewer funds at the end of the year amounted to $8,687 and $8,581
respectively. Other factors concerning the financial position of these funds have already been addressed in
the discussion of the City's business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget represent a $5,263 increase in
appropriations and include the following:

$ 2000 Provide funding for new Higher Education building
1,000 Provide funding for Hope V1 project (low income neighborhood)
700 Provide funding for new Regional Center for Health Profession building
403 Provide funding for FY2007 outstanding purchase orders/fencumbrances
233 Provide funding for renovation to City Hall building
161 Provide funding for acquisition of fire department equipment
161 Provide funding for acquisition of property 118 Shelby Street
100 Provide funding for central fire station roof replacement
100 Provide funding for new Boys & Girls Club facility
90 Provide funding for renovation to general facilities
90 Provide funding for employee performance awards
90 Provide funding for Art/Sculpture Walk program
40 Provide funding for Visitor Enhancement program
12 Provide funding for ETSU Arts program
10 Provide funding for Senior Citizen program
73 Other miscellaneous
$ 5263

Of this increase, approximately $704 was to be funded out of miscellaneous growth related increases in
various revenue sources or one-time receipts or grant activity. The remaining $4,559 was to be budgeted
from available fund balance.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
{amounts expressed in thousands)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2008,
amounts to $480,545 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,

buildings, improvements other than buildings, equipment, infrastructure and construction in progress.

Maijor capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

¢ Construction continued and/or began on various utility renovations and expansion projects including
several water projects to enhance water pressure, improvements to the sewer collection system to
address inflow/infiltration problems and sewer system plant and lift station renovation projects.

Business-type construction in progress at the close of the fiscal year was $18,991.

« Construction continued and/or began on a variety of general governmental facilities including the Higher
Education Center, Regional Center for Health Professions, John Adams Elementary School, energy
efficiency project, renovation of the Dobyns-Bennett High School and various street and bridge
improvement projects. Construction in progress at the close of the fiscal year pertaining to these type

facilities is $51,209.

CITY OF KINGSPORT'S CAPITAL ASSETS

(Net of Depreciation)
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Tdal
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Land $ 18789 $ 13304 § 4951 §$ 4,961 $ 23,750 § 18,265
Buildings and Systems 45,057 49,040 160,219 145,207 205,276 194,247
Improvements other than Buildings 4769 4,351 4,979 5,251 9,748 9,602
Machinery and Equipment 9,946 9,364 84 324 10,780 9,688
Sditware 73 103 - - 73 103
Infrastruciure 160,718 164,673 - - 160,718 164,673
Construction in Progress 51,209 38,487 18,991 30,417 70,200 68,904
Total Capital Assets $ 290561 $279,322 $189,984 $186,160 _$ 480545 _§ 465482

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 4.C on pages 58-62 of this report.
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Long-term debt
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total gross debt outstanding of $133,959. All of this debt is
backed by the full faith and credit of the government.

cITY OF KINGSPORT'S OUTSTANDING DEBT

{Gross Amounts}
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activilies Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Notes Payable § 6419 § 6302 % - % - $ 6419 §$ 6,302
General Obligation Bonds 74,292 63,481 47 657 53,860 121,949 117,341
Loans from Other Governments - - 5,581 5,423 5,591 5,423
Total Long-term Debt $ 80711 § 69,783 § 53248 § 59283  $ 133959 § 120,066

During the current fiscal year, the City's total debt increased by $4,893 (4%). This increase is primarily due
to bonds issued to fund construction of a Higher Educafion Center in Downtown Kingsport. The City
maintains an Al rating from Moody's Investors Service for its General Obligation debt.

The City is subject to debt limitations imposed by its Charter. The total bonded indebtedness (excluding
general obligation debt supported by utility operations and assessments) shall not exceed 20% of the
assessed taxable value of property within the City. The current debt limitation for the City of Kingsport is
significantly in excess of the outstanding general obligation debt. Additional information on the City's long-
term debt can be found in Note 4.E on pages 65-96 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

« The unemployment rate for the municipal service area is currently 6.2%, which is an increase of 1.8%

from a year ago. This compares to the state's average unempioyment rate of 6.5 %.
« inflationary trends in the region are comparable to national indices.

» 884 building permits with an estimated value of $180,938 were issued during this fiscal year, compared

to 886 building permits with an estimated value of $123,352 for the previous year.
e Growth in local sales tax collections is expected to be approximately 2.7% in FY2009.

Short term interest rates on investments for the City's operating funds decreased to approximately 2.25% in

fiscal year 2008 as the federal funding rate was decreased by the Federal Reserve Board.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City's budget for the 2009 fiscal year.
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(amounts expressed in thousands)

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund decreased to $14,848. The City has
appropriated $920 of this amount for spending in the fiscal year 2009 budget.

Water and sewer rates were increased for the 2009 budget year. The water rates were increased 3.5% for
customers outside City limits while customers inside the City remained at the same rates. Sewer rates
increased 8% for cutside customers and 2.8% for inside customers respectively. These rate increases were
necessary to fund operations and to finance debt service on the new debt scheduled to be issued during the
fiscal year.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with an interest in
such. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to the City of Kingsport, Finance Department Director, 225 West Center Street,
Kingsport, TN 37660.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2008
Primary Government Component Units
Indystrial Em
Govenmenta! Business - Development Comm:rt?lzna:{)ns
Activitiea Type Activities Total Board District
ASSETS: "
Cash $ 1108561 § 0§ 1109561 § 1,623420 1,630,746
Cash with Fiscal Agent 0 36,782 35,762 0 0
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investrents 33,000,080 18,304,077 50,204 767 0 0
Long Term Certificates of Deposit 365,424 0 365,434 0 0
Investments 395,926 45 395,871 0 0
Accounts Recelvable 32,219,368 3,734,625 35,853,013 10,592 31,193
Accryed Interest Receivable - M3733 62 343,795 0 32,757
Due from Other Governments 22,814,325 90,191 22,904,518 0 18,070
Due from Primary Govemment 0 0 0 2,961,800 0
Due from Component Units 10,592 25511 35,103 4] 0
Intemnal Balances 3,002,035 {3,092,035) 0 0 0
Inventories 520,649 613,373 1,034,022 0 0
Prepalds 511,448 1,444 512,802 2,400 21,776
Land Held for Sale or Development 0 0 0 5,037,569 0
Restricted Assets:
Cash 27,498,705 6,460,631 33,650,336 155,009 1]
Long Term Certificates of Deposit 4,300,000 58,000 4,358,000 0 0
Investments 14,200,338 73,008 15,174,304 154,089 0
Recetvables 4] 0 4] 501,312 [}
Capital Assets:
Land 18,788,827 4961314 23,750,141 0 0
Builkfings and Systems 91,008,318 241,026,772 332,035,090 0 0
Improvements Other Than Buildings 11,774,469 8,560,194 20,334,663 75725 [
Machinery and Equipment 34,218,564 3,824,851 35,043,445 0 695,540
Software 283,042 o) 283,042 [+ 0
Infrastructure 256,598,229 o) 258,508,229 0 0
Construction in Progress 51,209,271 16,901,340 70,200,811 0 0
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (175,319,895) (87,380,859) {262,700,854) {62,556) (382,199)
Cther Assets, net 914,307 494,457 1,408,764 0 0
Total Assets 433 745,984 2‘1 4682853 548,428,637 10,450,430 2,956,833
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payabile and Other Current Liabilities 12,915,015 1.3338,251 14,254,176 269,209 - 5,586
Due to Primary Government ] 1] 0 38,103 0
Due to Other Govemments 238,085 81,457 320,442 0 0
Compensated Absences Payable 3,206,479 511,845 3,718,124 0 0
Arbitrage Rebate Payable 0 379,003 379,003 ¢ 0
Matured Bonds and Interest Payable 0 41,262 41,262 1] 0
Accrued interest Payable 920,287 542,900 1472277 137,317 4
Uneamed Revenue 43,964,170 [+ 43,964,170 17,807 1]
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets o) 139,353 139,353 155,009 0
Moncurrent Liabllities: )
Due Within One Year 8,250,018 5,400,595 13,746,611 432,189 0
Due in More Than One Year 74,623,255 48,318,803 122,039,858 2,057 811 0
OPEB Liability 54208,075 493,268 5,815,343 0 0
Total Liabilitles 146,554,182 57,343 437 208,897 619 3,115,535 5,586
NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 251,706,778 142,403 582 394,110,370 13,1689 313,341
Restricted for Debt Service 0 578,748 578,749 o o
Restricted for Capital Improvements 30,247,255 540,370 30,707,625 1] 0
Restricted for Perpetual Care (Nonexpendable} 152,691 0 152,691 0 0
Unrestricted 2,085.078 13,816,505 16,801,583 7,330,735 1,737,856
Total Net Assets $ 284,191 802 $ 157330218 $ 441,531,018 $ 7,343,804 $ 2,051,267

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2008

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Total Fund Balance of Governmental Funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore are
not reported in the funds.

Property tax assessmenits are reported as revenue in the govemment - wide statements in the
period in which an enforceable legal claim arises against property owners. In governmental
funds, these assessments are not available to finance current perod expenditures and are
reported as defetred revenue untii paid by property owners.

Other long term assets are not available to pay for curent period expenditures and, therefore,
are deferred in the funhds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet maintenance,
liability insurance, and employee health insurance to individual funds. The assets and liabilities

of the intemal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Net Assets of Govermmental Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008 '

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of‘aclilv'rlies are different because:
Net Change in Fund Balance of Govemmental Funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay in the current period
exceeded depreciation of general fixed assets.

The net effect of varibus miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e. sales, trade-ins,
and donations) is a decrease o net assets.

Revenues in the statement of aclivities that do not provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues in the funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet maintenance,
liability insurance, and employee health insurance to individual funds. The net revenue of certain
activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. ’

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:
Compensated Absences
OPEB Liability
Accrued Interest

The issuance of long term debt (e.g. bonds) provide current financial resources to
govermnmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long term debt consumes

financial resources of govemmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and
similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in
the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment

of long term debt and related items.

Change in Net Assets of Govermental Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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$ 2,710,858

10,772,605

(259,468)

(141,150)

752,719

(477,643)
(5.426,075)
(805,537)

{10,703,507)

3 !3,577.198!



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE

GENERAL FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Taxes:

General Property

Gross Receipts
Licenses and Permits
Intergovemmentat:

Federal

State

County

Local
Charges for Sefvices
Fines and Forfeitures
Investment Eamings
Contributions and Donations
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
General Govemment:
Board of Mayor and Aldermen
Judicial
City Attorney
City Manager
Deputy City Manager
Budget Office
Special Programs
Public Information Office
Personnel
Purchasing
Finance Administration
information Sefvices
Geographic Information
Grant Office

Total General Government

Varfance with
Final Budget
Original Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amount (Negative)
$ 29,702,300 $ 29,702,300 $ 29771313 § 69,013
3,525,700 4,107,400 4,425616 318,216
603,000 603,000 778,788 175,788
18,600 18,600 0 (18,600)
4,952,500 5,006,350 5,524,371 518,021
15,491,400 15,491,400 14,995,835 (495,565)
272,500 272,500 279,744 7.244
1,606,400 1,574,510 1,270,450 (304,060)
2,048,000 2,049,000 2,034,486 (14.514)
1,300,000 1,300,000 939,112 (360,888)
50,000 50,000 7,350 {(42,650)
135,600 227,100 346,667 119,567
59,707,000 60,402,160 60,373,732 {28,428)
147,300 88,601 87,153 1,448
30,800 26,555 26,129 436
412,000 438,928 430,455 8,473
508,500 492,961 479,919 13,042
101,000 40,688 2997 37,691
135,600 143,734 135,552 8,182
1,542,300 1,682,518 1,673,009 9,509
173,400 187,254 179,154 8,100
903,400 893,446 820,462 72,984
207,600 218,276 210,047 8,229
1,583,600 1,613,190 1,576,499 36,691
997,000 1,056,397 1,045,964 10,433
299,800 376,516 286,448 90,068
53,100 58,637 51,217 7,320
7,095,400 7,317,611 7,005,005 312,606
{continued)
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with
‘ : Final Budget
Original Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amount (Negative)
Public Safety: )
Police Administration 1,670,400 1,821,194 1,807,788 13,406
Jail Operations 319,500 321,090 313,572 7,518
Training 311,400 268,232 245996 22,236
Traffic School 29,800 15,324 9,757 5,567
investigations 1,321,800 1,565,298 1,508,850 46,448
Patrol Division 5,128,900 5,036,490 4,976,149 60,341
Animal Control 117,000 127,192 116,910 10,282
Central Dispatch 957,500 972,003 §52,619 19,384
Communications 255,600 236,921 219,061 17,860
Fire Control and Prevention 6,761,600 6,804,669 6,710,004 94,665
Total Public Safety 16,873,500 17,158,413 16,860,706 297,707
Public Works:
Administration 373,600 386,549 377,395 9,154
Street Cleaning 393,100 455,844 448,077 7,767
Street Maintenance 1,750,600 1,653,084 1,614,511 38,573
Building Maintenance 1,380,200 1,488,497 1,460,372 28,125
Grounds Maintenance 963,900 974,720 964,447 10,273
Park Maintenance 392,200 385,092 337,914 - 47,178
Landscaping 493,800 487,100 436,866 50,234
Total Public Works 5,747 400 5,830,886 5,639,582 191,304
Economic and Physical Development:
Administration 282,800 314,522 304,674 9,848
Planning 410,200 404 228 395,870 8,358
Transportation 1,021,700 1,036,469 994,839 41,630
Charter Bus Service 0 35,489 15,564 19,925
Engineering 1,074,700 1,070,056 1,058,221 11,835
Code Enforcement 571,300 521,957 513,420 8,537
Total Economic and Physical Development 3,360,700 3,382,721 3,282,588 100,133

(continued)
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND _
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Varance with
Final Budget
Original Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amount (Negative)
Culture and Recreation:
Administration 356,800 350,526 328,773 21,753
Parks and Recreation Centers 351,500 458,398 446,081 12,317
Swimming Pools 117,600 132,040 119,655 12,385
Athletics 580,500 563,336 543,584 19,752
Cultural Arts 245,200 261,025 244 521 16,504
Allandale 193,900 222,782 201,745 21,037
K - Play 200,300 207,781 195,897 11,884
Senior Citizens Center 401,500 399,140 383,817 15,323
Bays Mountain Park 975,400 978,776 963,603 15,173
Library 1,060,300 1,059,793 1,034,814 24,979
Total Culture and Recreation 4,493,000 4,633,597 4,462,490 171,107
Miscellaneous 1,032,850 1,067,563 1,019,288 48,275
Capital Qutlay 438,900 1,114,861 898,876 215,985
Total Expenditures 39,041,750 40,505,652 39,168,535 1,337,117
: |
Excess of Revenues Qver Expenditures 20,665,250 19,896,508 21,205,197 1,308,689
Other Financing Sources (Uses): |
Transfers In 2,593,700 2,602,600 2,524,363 (78,237)
Transfers Qut (23,478,950) (27,277,870} (27,208,550) 69,320
Sale of Building 0 0 800,000 800,000
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) {20,885,250) {24,675,270) (23,884 187) 791,083
Net Change in Fund Balances (220,000} (4,778,762) (2,678,990) 2,099,772
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 220,000 4,778,762 20,918,736 16,139,974 |
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 $ 0 0 $ 18,239,746 $ 18,239,748

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with
. Final Budget
Original . Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget . Amount {Negative)
REVENUES:
County Taxes: _ ,
Property Taxes $ 14,040,000 $ 13,440,000 $ 13,550,975 $ 110,975
Gross Receipts Taxes 6,660,000 6,430,000 6,459,153 29,153
Other Taxes 62,000 62,000 51,284 {10,716)
Intergovemmental: :
Federal 176,400 185,127 190,490 5,363
State 20,120,000 21,807,575 21,778,710 (26,865)
County 0 549,009 549,009 0
Charges for Services 1,154,100 1,154,100 1,057,623 (96,477)
Misceflaneous 140,000 328,465 365,513 37,048
Total Revenues - 42,354 500 43,956,276 44,002,757 46,481
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:
Regular ' 26,711,841 27,945,363 27,312,161 633,202
Special Education 3,839,000 3,831,339 3,827,624 3,715
Vocational 1,312,200 1,317,075 1,292,511 24,564
Adult Education 163,800 178,868 171,797 7,071
Total Instruction 32,026,841 33,272,645 32,604,093 668,552
Student Support Services:
Attendance 89,800 112,131 109,536 ’ 2,595
Health Services 421,200 484,961 474 591 10,390
Other 1,766,600 1,783,684 1,752,520 31,164
Total Student Support Services 2,277,700 2,380,796 2,336,647 44,149
lnstn_icliona! Staff Support Services:
Regular 2,672.100 2,754 472 2,652,073 102,398
Special Education - 341,400 336,900 335,909 991
Vocational 143,100 144,400 142,748 1,652
Adult Education 146,500 147,600 140,887 6,713
Total Instructional Staff Support Services 3,303,100 3,383,372 3,271,617 111,755
General Administrative Support Services:
Board of Education 920,250 931,100 928,588 2,512
Office of Superintendent 894,500 935,825 933,400 2,425
Total General Administralive Support Services 1,815,150 1,866,925 1,861,988 4,937
{conlinued)
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

School Administrative Support Services
Business Administrative Support Services
Operations and Maintenance Support Services:

Operations
Plant Maintenance

Total Operations and Mazintenance Support Services

Student Transportation Supporl Services
Noninstructional Services:
After School Programs
Community Service
Total Noninstructional Services
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, July 1, 2007

Fund Balances, June 30, 2008

Variance with
Final Budget
Original . Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Anmount (Negative)
2,424, 200 2,357,058 2,342,587 14,471
304,400 . 301,639 297,519 4,120
3,61 5.050 3,622,636 3,611,984 16,652
1,801,600 2,477,100 2,394,424 82,676
5,416,650 6,009,736 6,006,408 93,328
1,340,500 1,367,589 1,310,006 57,583
173,750 176,748 - 170,768 5,880
545,850 547,644 515,945 31,599
719,600 724,292 686,713 37,579
1,208,059 472,556 227,162 245,394
50,836,200 52,226,608 50,944,740 1,281,868
(8,481,700} (8,270,332) (6,941,983) _ 1,328,349
15,493,400 15,493,400 - 15,279,054 (214,346)
(7.122,200) (8,911,703) (8.736.910) 175,793
8,371,200 6,581,697 6,543,144 (38,553)
{110,500) (1,688,635) (398,839) 1,289,796
110,500 1,688,635 4 540,385 2,851 .?50
0 $ 0 § 4141546 § 4,141,546 |

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements,
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The City of Kingsport, Tennessee (the City) was incorporated in 1917 and operates under a Council-
Manager form of government. The City is an industrial community in the foothills of the Appalachian
Mountains. Along with two other comparably-sized cities within a 20-mile radius, the City is part of a 12
county area in northeast Tennessee and southwest Virginia known as the Tri-Cities TennesseefVirginia

region,

The financial slatements of the City have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental
accounting and financial reporting. Private-sector standards of accounting and financiat reporting issued
prior to December 1, 1989 generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the
GASB. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their
business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to
follow subsequent private-sector guidance. The Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes
GAAP for governmental units. The more significant of these accounting policies are desciibed below.

A. Reporting entity
Primary Government

The City is a Tennessee municipal corporation governed by an elecied mayor, Board of Mayor
and Aldermen (BMA), appointed vice mayor, and six aldermen. The accompanying financial
statements present the City (primary government) and its component units, entities for which the
City is considered to be financially accountable. The City is financially accountable ¥ it appoints
"a voting majority of the organization’s govemning body and (1) it is able to impose its will on the
organization or (2) there is a potential for the entity to provide specific financial benefit to or
impose specific financial burden on the City. Additionally, the primary govemment is required to
consider other entities for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be

misleading or incomplete.

The financial statements are formatted to allow the user to cleary distinguish between the
primary government and its component units. Discretely presented component units are
reported in separate columns in the govemment-wide financial statements (see nole below for
description) to emphasize that those entities are legally separate from the City.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

A. Repotting entity (continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units

Proprietary Fund Type

The Industrial Development Board of the City of Kingsport, Tennessee (IDBK) - The IDBK
was incorporated on February 11, 1986, under the provisions of the Stale of Tennessee
constitution and general statutes. The purpose of the IDBK is to finance, acquire, own, lease,
and/or dispose of properties {o maintain and increase employment opportunities in the City. The
IDBK consists of nine members, all of whom are appointed by the City's BMA. Separately
issued financial stalements of the IDBK are nofl available. _

Emergency Communications District of the City of Kingsport, Tennessee {ECD) — The
ECD was created by referendum on January 11, 1994, the results of which were certified on
January 20, 1994. The purpose of the ECD is to oversee the operations of the 911 emergency
telephone service. Their Board consists of nine members, all of whom are appointed by the
City's BMA. Separately issued financial statements may be requested from the ECD
administrative offices.

Emergency Communications District of the City of Kingsport
200 Shelby Street
Kingsport, Tennessee 37660

Govemment-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
aclivities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary govemment and its
component units. As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been saliminated from the
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are various charges between
the City's water and sewer functions and various other functions of the government. Elimination of
these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions
concemed. Governmental aclivities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on
fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary govemment is reported separately from certain
legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activilies demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are dearly identifiable
with a specific funclion or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a
given function or segment and (2) grants and contributions that are resiricted o meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properiy included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

Government-wide and fund financial statements (oontinued)

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
cofumns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the cutrent period or soon enough thereafter o pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues 1o be available if they are collected
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period for local revenues, 120 days for state-shared
revenues, and 365 days for grant revenues. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is

due.

In general, taxes, licenses, federal and state grants and inlerest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered 1o be susceptible 1o accrual and have been recoghized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. Business taxes are not considered measurable and therefore are not
susceptible to accrual. All other revenue items are considered 1o be measurable and available only

when cash is received by the government.
The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required 1o be accounted for in

another fund.

The general purpose school fund accounts for transactions of the City School System.
The major sources of funding are state-shared revenues and local property and sales

{axes.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED);

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (continued)

The capital projects fund accounts for financial resources used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities related to the general operation of the City
(excluding capital improvements financed by enterprise funds).

The debt service fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for the payment of

principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt other than that payable from
enterprise funds.

The City reports the following nonmajor governmental funds:

The school nutrition services fund accounts for the activities of the City School System
cafeterias.

The special school project fund accounts for the activities of various grant funded school
projects.

The public law 93-380 fund accounts for the activities of providing specific academic
programs in compliance with federal grant entittements.

The Palmer Center fund accounts for a contribution from the heirs of the late Mary L.
Robinson estate, for the support of educational and other services provided to physically
challenged children by the Palmer Center.

The special revenue general projects fund accounts for federal and state grants matched

with local revenues to fund general govemment programs or non-capital improvement

projects. .
The community development fund accounts for the activities funded by community block

grant entilements from the United States Department of Housing and Urban

Development.

The federal transit administration fund accounts for the activities funded by federal and
state grants for support of local government transporiation programs.

The stale street aid fund accounts for the activities funded by state gasoline taxes.

The drug fund accounts for the activities of drug investigations and enfbrcement.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

C.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial SEtement presentation (continued)

The criminal forfeiture fund accounts for the activities related to seized property and
money with the exception of those related to drug activities. In addition, this fund
accounts for funds received from the United States Department of Justice under the
Equitable Sharing of Federally Forfeited Property program.

The regional sales tax revenue fund accounts for the proceeds from a $.0025 local sales
tax previously approved by local referendum. These funds are used for the retirement of
debt issued to fund construction of the MeadowView Conference Resort and Convention
Center and to support the operations of the complex.

The public fibrary commission fund accounts for contributions from patrons, ciQic
organizations, private corporations and other supporters of the Kingsport Public Library.

The Bays Mountain Park fund accounts for contributions from individuals, civic
organizations and private corporations for the support and continued development of the
Bays Mountain Park.

The Steadman cemetery fund accounts for a contribution from the heirs of Bonnie M.
Steadman to provide for the maintenance of the Steadman family cemetery.

The senior citizens advisory board fund accounts for revenues earned from various
programs and events conducted by participating senior citizens and confributions from
individuals, civic organizations and private corporations.

The metmpolitan planhing office fund accounts for federal grant funds received from the
federal highway administration, federal transit administration, and state grant funds
granted to the State for support of local MPO programs. -

" The Eastman annexation tax fund accounts for funds generated from the annexation of

the Long lsland section of Eastman Chemical Company focated in Kingsport, TN. The
revenues derived from the annexation are to be allocated toward net value adding capital
improvements to infrastructure, education, recreation, and general city use.

The justice assistance grant fund accounts for direct federal grant funds received from
the Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program. These funds are
restricted for certain law enforcement programs.

The visitors enhancement fund accounts for 25%.of the hotel and motel taxes collected in

Kingsport from hotel and motel room rentals. This revenue is intended to fund special
visitor enhancement projects.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED):

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (continued)
The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The water fund accounts for the activities of the City's production, storage and
transportation of potable water. '

The sewer fund accounts for the aclivities of the City's collection, transportation,
treatment and disposal of wastewater.

The sofid waste management fund accounts for the activities of the City’s collection of
residential garbage refuse collection, recycling, and demolition landfill activities,

The MeadowView Conference Resort and Convention Center fund accounts for the
activities of the City's outsourced operation (through-Marriott) of the convention center.

The Catlails at MeadowView Golf Course fund accounts for the activities of the City's
outsourced operation {through Marriott Gotf) of the 18-hole championship golf course.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Internal service funds account for risk management, self-insured health insurance and
fleet maintenance services provided to other departments or agencies of the govemment
on a cost reimbursement basis.

The permanent fund accounts for nonexpendable assets left to the City by the late
Harvey Brooks, consisting of his home (Allandale Mansion) and other tangible and
intangible assets.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of alf of the City’s enterprise funds and of the City’s intemal setvice funds are charges to customers
for sales and services. The water and sewer funds also recognize as operating revenue the portion
of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the systems. Operating
expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy
to use resfricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

C.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (continued)

Internal service funds of a government (which traditionally provide services primarily to other funds
of the government) are presented, in summary form, as parl of the proprietary fund financial
statements. Since the principal users of the intemal services are the City's governmental activities,
financial statements of internal service funds are consolidated into the governmental column when
presented at the government-wide level. The costs of these services are allocated to the
appropriate functional activity (police, fire, public works, etc.).

Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity
1. Deposits and investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

State statutes impose various restrictions on the City’s, IDBK's, and ECD's deposits and
investments, including repurchase agreements. These restrictions are summarized as follows:

DEPOSITS - All deposits with financial institutions must be collateralized in an amount
equal to 105% of the market value of uninsured deposits.

INVESTMENTS - State statutes authorize the City to invest in freasury bonds, notes or
bills of the United States of America; nonconvertible debt securities of the Federal Home
Loan Bark, the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Farm Credit Bank
and the State Loan Marketing Association; other obligations not listed above which are
guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States of America or any of its
agencies; Certificates of Deposit and other evidences of deposit at State and Federal
chartered banks and Savings and Loan Associations; obligations of the United States of
America or its agencies under a repurchase agreement and money market funds whose .
portfolios consist of any of the foregoing investments if approved by the State Director of
Local Finance and made in accordance with procedures established by the State
Funding Board; the State of Tennessee Local Government Investment Podl (LGIP);
obligations of the Public Housing Authority and bonds of the Tennessee Valley

Authority. :

The City pools cash resources of its various funds in order to facilitate the management of cash.
Cash applicable to a particular fund is readily identifiable. In general, cash overdrafis are
reflected in the financial statements as due fo other funds. The balance in the pooled cash
accounts is available to meet current operating requirements. Cash in excess of current
requirements is invested in various interest-bearing securities and disclosed as part of the City's
investments. "

Investments for the City, as well as for its component units, are reported at fair vaiue based on
quoted market prices.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

D. Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity {continued) -

2. Receivables and payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at

the end of the fiscal year are referred to as elther “due toffrom other funds” (i.e., the current

portion of interfund loans) or “advances foffrom other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of

interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due toffrom

other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and

gulsiness-fype activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal
alances.

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. The
property tax receivable and trade receivables allowance accounts are based on prior years’
collection experience. .

All property values are assessed on January 1 of each year. Property taxes receivable are
recorded at this lien date. All real and personal property taxes are due and payable on the levy
date of November 1 of each year, at which time the receivable is recognized as revenue. All
unpaid property {axes become delinquent on December 1 {30 days from date of levy). A penalty
of 2% is imposed on unpaid property taxes as of December 1. A penalty of 2% is imposed for’
the next month and an additional penalty of 1% is imposed for each month thereafter until paid,
of the property is sold as authorized by law.

Inveniories ard prepaid items

All inventories are valued at cost, utilizing the weighted average method of valuation.
Inventories of governmental and ‘proprietary funds are recorded as expenditures or expenses
when consumed rather than when purchased. '

‘Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both govemment-wide and fund financial statements.

Restricted assels

Certain cash and investment balances of the City are classified as resiricted assets at the
government-wide and fund level because they are maintained in separate accounts and their
use is limited by certain agreements and contracts with third parties. Restricted cash includes
sinking fund accounts established to meet the requirements of certain bonds issues, escrow for
construction contractors established to fund retainages of outstanding construction projects
upon their completion, subdivision developer deposits that are refunded upon acceptable
completion of project, and working capital for outsourced operations of City facllities. Restricted
investments include borrowed funds obligated for construction projects that have not been
completed at the end of the fiscal year.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED):
D. Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity {continued)

5. Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by
the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life
in excess of two years for property, plant and equipment and assets with an initial, individual
cost of more than $100,000 for infrastructure. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation. ‘

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major.outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. The total interest expense
incurred by the water and sewer funds during the current fiscal year was $613,017 and
$1,528,054, respectively. Of these amounts, $109,885 and $424,755, respectively, were
included as part of the cost of capital assets under construction in each of these funds in
connection with water and sewer line replacement and extension construction projects.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are
depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated usefiRl tives: ‘

Assets Years
Roads and bridges 50
Utility lines 45
Buildings and huilding improvements 30
Landfill improvements 25
Golf course improvements 15
Machinery, equipment and heavy vehicles 10
Automobiles 5

6. Compensated absences

it is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation days and
sick leave benefits. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the City does
not have a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from service with the City.
However, it is the City's policy to apply the accumulated sick leave toward years for retirement.
All vacation pay s accrued when incurred in the government-wide, intemal service and
proprietary fund financial statements. A liabilty for these amounts is reported in _the
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations
and retirements.

48



CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

D. Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity (continued)
6. Compensated absences (continued)

It is also the City’s policy to permit employees from cerlain departments of the City to
accumulate eamed but unused compensation time (comp time) for excess hours worked in lieu
of overtime payments. The unpaid balance of reimbursable unused comp time is accrued when
incurred in the government-wide financial statements. A liability for these amounts has been
recorded in the governmental funds.

7. Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financiai
statements, long-term debt and other longterm obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of
net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.

Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance
costs are reported as defetred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. In the
fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is
reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as
other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as
_ debt service expenditures. : :

8. Fund equity

in the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for
use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans
that are subject to change.

9. Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual resuits
could differ from those estimates.
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2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

A. Explanation of certain differences between the govemrhental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance - total governmenital
funds and net assels — govermmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net
assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that “capitat assets used in governmental activities
are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.” The details of this $283,360,771
difference are as follows:

Governmental funds capital assets $ 444,548,337
Less: accumulated depreciation (161,187,566)

Net adjustment to increase fund balances ~ total governmental funds
to arrive at net assets — governmental activities $_283.360.771

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “other long-term assets are not available to pay for
current-period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.” The details of this $884,307
difference are as follows:

Deferred bond issuance costs $ 1,129,782
Less: accumulated amortization {245,475)

Net adjustment to increase fund balances — lotal governmental funds
to amrive at net assels — governmental aclivities $__ 884307

Andther element of that reconciliation explains that "long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not
due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.” The details of this
$(92,213,192) difference are as follows:

Bonds payable $ (73,954,097)
Notes payable (4,819,174)
Interlocal cooperative agreement {(2,500,000)
Capital outiay notes payable (1,600,000).
Compensated absences (3,108,307)
OPEB liability (5,426,075)
Accrued interest payable (805,539)
Net adjustment to reduce fund balances — total governmental funds

to arrive at net assets — governmental activities $_(92.213,192)
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2. RECONCILIAT!ON OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED):

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expendltures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total govemmental funds and changes in net
assels of govermmental activities as reported in the govemment-wide statement of aclivities. One
element of that reconciliation explains that “govemmental funds report capital outiays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation of the general fixed assets in the current period.” The defails of this $10,772,605 difference
are as follows:

Capital outlays $ 21,263,051
Depreciation expense . {10,490.446)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds to amrive at changes in not
assetls of governmental aclivities $ 10,772,605

Another element of that reconciliation states that “The net effect of various miscellaneous tfransactions
involving capital assets (i.e. sales, trade-ins and donations) is to decrease net assets.” The details of this
$(259,468) difference are as follows:

Capitat asset donations reported in statement of activities $ 6,172,105
Capital project expenditures not meeting

capitalization requirements (5,831,708)
Asset disposals 599,865

Net adjustment to reduce net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds to armive at changes in net
assefs of governmental activities $ _(259.468)

Another element of that reconciliation states that “revenues in the statement of aclivities that do not
provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.” The details of this
$(141,150) difference are as follows:

Deferred property taxes as of June 30, 2008 $ 917754
Prior years’ property taxes collected during current year {1,058,904)

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net
assets of govermmental aclivities $_ {141,150)
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2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{CONTINUED]}: '

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities
{continued) -

Another element of that reconciliation states that “the net revenue of certain activities of internal service
funds is reported with govemmental activities.” The details of this $752,719 difference are as follows:

Investment eamings $ 637241
State grant 5,656
Gain on disposal of capital assets 10,750
Operating loss ‘ 7 ' {145,341)
Transfers In 244 413

Net adjustment to increase nef changes in fund balances —
total govemmental funds to arrive at changes in net
assets of govemnmental activities $ 752719

Another element of that reconciliation states that “the issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds) provides
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
assels. Also, govemmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar
items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related
items.” The details of this $(10,703,507) difference are as follows:

Principal repayments _ % 12,191,783
Issuance of capital outlay note {4,000,000)
Issuance of general obligation bonds and notes {19,120,000)
Premium on issuance of general obligation bonds (112,398)
Amortization of premiums, discounts and refunding costs 10,801
Bond issue cosls 385,781
Amortization of deferred bond issue costs (59,.474)

Net adjustment to decrease nef changes in fund balances — total govemmental
funds to arrive at changes in net assets of govemmental activities $ (10,703 507)
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3. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY:

A. Budgetary lnforrnation.

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP for all governmental funds except the
capital projects fund and certain special revenue funds associated with grant awards, which are adopted
on a project-by-project basis and normally span a muiti-year period.

The City Manager is required by charter to present to the BMA a preliminary budget for the upcoming
fiscal year by May 15™. The preliminary budget is compiled from revenue and expense projections as
well as requests submitted by each department. The BMA must pass the preliminary budget on two
readings before it is adopted and becomes the approved spending plan for the City.

The City Manager has the authority to transfer the unused portion of any item or appropriation within the
same department, between departments in any given fund, and across departments and/or funds for fleet,
risk management and health insurance. The City Manager also has the authority to transfer funds from
the vehicle repair and maintenance account of one depariment to the vehicle repair and maintenance
account of another department. Any revisions that alter the totat expenditures of any fund must be
approved by the BMA. Expenditures may not exceed appropriations at the fund level. Supplemental
appropriations may be authorized by the BMA through the adoption of appropriate ordinances during the
fiscal year.

Formal budgetary accounting is employed as a management control for all funds of the City. Annual
operating budgets are adopted each fiscal year through passage of an annual budget ordinance and
amended as required for the general fund, general purpose school, certain special revenue funds
{criminal forfeiture, drug, state street aid, regional sales tax revenue, visitors enhancement, Eastman
annexation tax, Steadman cemetery, public library commission, Bays Mountain Park senior citizens
advisory board, school nuirition services, and Palmer Center), debl service fund, proprietary funds and
the permanent fund. Budgets for the remaining special revenue funds and capital projects funds are
made on a project basis, spanning more than one fiscal year. Budgetary control is exercised at the
departmental level or by project. '
Encumbrances (e.g., purchase orders, contracts) outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of
fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabililies because the commitments wili be
reappropriated and honored during the subsequent year. Encumbrance reservations are presented in the
general, general purpose school, debt service, capital projects, community development, special revenue
general projects, drug, fleet maintenance, federal transit administration, metropolitan planning office,
special school projects, public law 93-380, state street aid and senior citizens advisory board funds.

B. Excess of expenditures over appropriations

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, thefe were no instances of expenditures exceeding
appropnations in any funds.

C. Deficit fund equity

For the fiscal year ended June 30 2008, there were no instances of deficit fund equity in any funds.
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS:

A. Deposits and investments

Cash deposits on the statement of net assets include demand deposils, certificates of deposit, savings
accounts, cash on deposit with the State of Tennessee and cash deposited in escrow accounts.

Custodial Credit Rate Risk
Deposits
The policy for custodiat credit rate risk on deposits is to follow state guidelines.

At year end, the City's carrying amount of deposits was $85,353,996 and the bank balance was
$88,717,055. Of the bank balance, $600,000 was covered by federal depository insurance with the
remaining balance of $88,117,055 being collateralized with the State of Tennessee Bank Collateral Pool
with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the City’s name.

The carrying amount of deposits for the IDBK, a discretely presented component unit, was $1,778,528
and the bank balance was $2,051,593. Of the bank balance, $200,000 was covered by federal
depository insurance. Of the remaining balance, $1,637,467 was collateralized with the State of
Tennessee Bank Collateral Pool with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust
-department or agent in the IDBK's name, $100,000 was covered by the Securities Investor Protection
Corporation and $115,126 was protected with insurance coverage held by the enlity’s agent in the IDBK's
name.

The camying amount of deposits for the ECD, also a discretely presented component unit, was
$1,639,746 and the bank balance was $1,651,974. Of the bank balance, $500,000 was covered by
federal depository insurance, with the remaining balance of $1,151,974 being collateralized with the State
of Tennessee Bank Collateral Pool with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust
department of agent in the ECD’s name.
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {CONTINUED):

A. Deposits and investments {continued):
Custodial Credit Rate Risk (continued):
Investments

The City’s investment policy is to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall investment portfolic,
The City will emphasize the safety of capital first, maintain sufficient liquidity to meet obligations second,
and gain the highest possible yield third.

The City's investments generally include long term certificates of deposit with the State of Tennessee
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).

Specifically, the LGIP was established under Tennessee Code Annotated Title 9, Chapter 4, Part 7. This
investment pool is established for the use of idle funds of local govemments located within the State of
Tennessee. These funds are placed by the participating entity into accounts that are held and invested
by the State Treasurer. The LGIP invest in time deposits, such as certificates of deposit, commercial
paper, United States of Amefica agency securities, repurchase agreements, and United States of
America treasuries. By law, the LGIP is required to maintain a 90-day or less weighted-average-maturity.
The fair value of shares held in the LGIP is the same as the value of the LGIP shares. The TN LGIP has
not been rated by a nationally recognized stafistical rating organization.

At year end, the City’s cammying amount for investments are as follows:

Weighted Average
investment Type Fair Value Maturity (in Years)
Cerlificate of Deposit ' $ 4,721,434 0.24
Tennessee Local Government .

Investment Pool 15,570,305 0.21
Total $ 20,291,739

The City does not have a policy for determining which investments will be recorded at amortized cost. No
investments are recorded at amortized cost at June 30, 2008.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City’s investment policy does not allow for an investment in any issuer that is in excess of five
percent of the City's total investments.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

C. Capital assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

. Primary govemment

Adustments Ending Balance

(175,319,895)

Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions
Govemmental activiies:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 13303601 $ 5485226 § -
Construction in Progress 38,486,595 19,634,124 (6,911,448)
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 51,790,196 25,119,350 (6,911,448)
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 90,885,181 673,137 {550,000)
Improvements other than buildings 10,578,656 1,195,813 -
Equipment 32,334,801 2,756,905 (873,202)
Software 283,042 - -
Infrastructure 257,689,751 908,478
Total capital assets, belng depreciated 3N, 771,521 5,534,333 {1,423,202)
Less accumulated depreciation for: ‘
Bulidings (41,845144) (4,415,206) 9,167
Improvements other than bulldings (6.227,747) (777,849) -
Equipment (22,971.052) - (2,105,599) 803,569
Software (180,108) {28.972)
Infrastructure {93,016,081)  (4,864.873)
Totat accumulated depreciation (164,240,132)  {11,892,499) 812,736
Total capitat assets, being depreciated, net 227,531,389 (6,358,166) {610,466)

$ 200,560.855

Govermnmental activies capital assets, net $ 279,321,585 $ 18,761,184 . § (7.521,914) §
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {CONTINUED):

C. Capital assets (continued)

Business-type acfivities;
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Water
Land
Construction in Progress
Sewer
Land
Construction in Progress
Solid waste management
Land
Construction in Progress
Meadowview Conference Resort
and Convention Center
Land
Construcion in Progress
Cattails at Meadowview Golf Course
Land '

Tolal capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Water
Buildings and sysiem
Equipment and machinery
Sewer
Buildings and system
Equipment and machinery
Solid waste management
Buildings and system
Improvements other than Buildings
Equipment and machinery
M f R

and Convention Center

Buildings
Improvements other than Buildings
Equipment
Cattails at MeadowView Golf Course
Buildings
Improvements other than Buildings
Equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Beginning

Balance Additions Deletions Adjustments Amount
3 639,744 § - 3 - $ $ 639,744
8,260,581 1,252,447 (2,783,157} 6,730,271
516,352 - - 516,352
21,634,672 3,881,966 (13,314,769} 12,201,869
1,308,121 - - 1,308,121
521,259 - (521,259) -
1,515,497 - - 1,515,497
- 59,200 - 59,200
981,600 - - 981,600
35,378,226 5,183,613 (16,619,185} 23,952,654
73,354,111 4,534,593 - 77.888,704
1,119,921 102,970 {43,184) 1,179,707
124,645,495 15,632,824 - 140,279,319
915,988 14,270 (43.459) 886,799
155,508 - - 155,508
2,186,362 69,432 - 2255794
31,082 424,461 - 455,543
21,545,085 - - 21,545,085
324103 8,870 - 332,973
879,944 - - 879,944
1,158,156 - - 1,158,156
5,971,427 - - 5,971,427
373,813 49,045 - 422,858
232,661,895 20,836,465 (86,643) 253.411,817
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

C.

Capital assets (continued)

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Water

Buildings and system
Equipment and machinery

Sewer

Bufidings and system

Equipment and machinery

Solid waste management
Bulldings and system
improvements other than Bulldings
Equipment and machinery
MeadowView Conference Resort

and Convention Center

Buildings
improvements other than Buiidings

Equipment
Cattails at Meadow\View Golf Course

Buildings
Improvements other than Buildings
Equipment

Total accumudated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type aclivities capital assets, net

Beginning
Balance Additions Detetions Adjustments Amount
(28,186,791) {1.796,903) - - (29,983,694)
(902,398) {33,778) 41,684 - (894,492)
{42,055,989) {2,785.677) - - (44,84 1,666)
(857,801) {21,374) 42 459 - (B36,716)
(66,666) {4,833) - - (71,499)
{1,077,068) {78,010) - - {1,155,078)
(23.670) {8.746) - - (32,416)
(5.079,975) (539,761) - - (5,619.736)
(124,608) {42511) - - {167.119)
(858,513) {5.454) - - {863,967)
(262,346) {29,299) - - {291,645)
(2,029,055) {230,.251) - - (2.259,310)
(353,827) {9.794) - - (363,621)
(81,878,711} (5.586,391) 84,143 - (87,380,959)
150,783,284 15,250,074 {2.500) - 166,030,858
- $ 189,983,512

$ 186,161,510 § 20443687 __$ (16.621,685) %

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government

Economic and physical development

Public safety

Public works

Culture and recreation
Education

Total depreciation expense — governmental activities
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

C. Capital assets (continued)

Business-type acfivities;

Water - $ 1,830,681
Sewer 2,807,051
Solid waste management 91,589
MeadowView Conference Resort and Convention Center 587,726
Cattails at MeadowView Goif Course 269,344

Total depreciation expense — business-type activities $_5.586.391
Construction commitments '

The City has active construction projects as of June 30, 2008. The governmental projects of the City are
reflected in the capital projects and special revenue general project funds and the City has provided funding
for the future commitments in the amounts of $39,137,567 and $319,995 respectively, through bonded debt
and local funding. In the proprietary funds, funding for construction proiects has been provided and is in
segregated deposit and investment accounts totaling $6,236,278. Except for projects which are shared with
counties or the State of Tennessee, the City could terminate any project at their discretion,

Discretely presented component units

Activity for the IDBK for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions Adjustments  Amount

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Signs $ 55422 § - 8§ - 8 - § 55422

Improvements other than buildings 20,303 - - - 20,303
Total capital assets, being depreciated 75,725 - - - 75,725
Less accumuiated depreciation for:

Signs {39,169) -(3.084) - - (42,253)

Improvements other than buikdings {20,303) - - - (20,303}
Total accumulated depreciation (59,472) {3,084) - - {62,556)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 16,253 (3.084) - ) - 13,169

IDBK capital assets, net $ 16253 $ (3.084) % - 8 - $ 13,169
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {CONTINUED):
C. Capital assets {continued)
Activity for the ECD for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

Beginning ‘
Balance Additions  Deletions Adjustments  Amount

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Equipment $ 649562 § 54392 $(8414) § - $695,540
Total capital assels, being depreciated 649,562 54,392 (8,414) - 695,540
Less accumulated depreciation for: .

Equipment {297,388)  (86,737) 5,926 (4,000} (382,199)
Total accumulated depreciation (297,388) (86,737) 5,926 (4,000) (382,199)
Total capital assels, being depreciated, net 352,174 (32,345) {2,488) {4,000) 313,341
ECD capital assets, net $ 352,174 $(32,345) $(2488) $ (4.000) _$ 313,341
D. Interfund receivables, payables, and transfers
Interfund receivables and payables

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2008, is as follows:

Due toffrom other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General (major) Caltaits at MeadowView Golf Course (major)  $3,069,547
Community development (nonmajor) 37,527
Federal transit administration (nonmajor) 234,525
Metropolitan planning office (nonmajor) 65,578
State street aid (nonmajor) 46,001
Senior Citizens Advisory Board (nonmajor) 1,871

General puipose school (major) Public law 93-380 (nonmajor) 610,837
Special school projects (nonmajor) 268,623

Regional sales tax (major) Calttails at MeadowView Golf Course (major) 45,766

Fleet maintenance (intemal service)  Solid waste management (major) 876,722
Total $ 5,256,997
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ‘ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

D. Interfund receivables, payables, and transfers (contiriued)

Interfund receivables and payables (continued)

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that interfund
goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are recorded in the
accounting system, and payments between funds are made.

Due toffrom primary government and component units:

Receivable Entity Payable Entity Amount

~ Primary government — General Fund  Component unit - IDBK $ 10,592

Primary government — Sewer Fund Component unit - IDBK 14,796

Primary government — Water Fund Component unit - IDBK 10,715

Total $.36.103
Interfund transfers '

Transfers are used to move revenue from the fund with collection authorization or resolution to the debt
service fund as debt service principal and interest payments become due and also to move unrestricted
general fund revenues to finance various programs that the government must account for in other funds
in accordance with budgetary authorizations, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds
for various grant programs.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4, DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):
E. Long-term debt

In prior years, the City defeased certain general obligations and other bonds by placing the proceeds of
new bonds in an escrow account to provide for all fulure debt service payments on the old bonds.
Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the City’s
financial statements. On June 30, 2008, the following bonds outstanding are considered fo be defeased:

Date of Refunding Amount issues Refunded
03/15/04 General Obligation $3,830,000 1999, 2001
03/15/04  Water & Sewer System Revenue 4,970,000 1999, 2001

$ 8,800,000

Governmental Aclivities:

Notes Payable

The City issued a Note Payable with the State of Tennessee as a Loan for Qualified Zone Academy
Projects in November 1999 for $413,697 with a maturity date of November 11, 2011. Annual principal
payments are $34,474 and the interest is variable. As of June 30, 2008, $137,905 is outstanding. The
City also issued a loan for Qualified Zone Academy Projects in November 2004 for $3,524,680 with a
maturity date of November 2020. Annual principal payments are $220,293 and the inferest rate is
variable. As of June 30, 2008, $2,863,802 is outstanding. The City also issued a loan for the Qualified
Zone Academy Bonds in December 2005 for $1,549,000 with a maturity date of December 2020. Annual
principal payments are $103,267 and the interest rate is variable. As of June 30, 2008, $1,342,466 is

outstanding.

The City issued a General Obligation Capital Outlay Note, Series 2007 on May 2, 2007 for $1,600,000 for
energy management improvement projects. The note has an annual interest rate of 4.12% with a
maturity date of May 2019.

The City issued a Local Government Energy Efficiency Note on May 25, 2007 for $475,000 for energy
efficiency improvement projects. The note is interest free with a maturity date of July 15, 2014.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {CONTINUED):
E. Long-term debt (continued)
Notes Payable (continued)

Payments to maturity on the notes payable are as follows:

Capttal Energy

1999 2004 2005 Outlay Efficiency

QZAB QZAB QZAB Note Loan
2009 $ 34474 $ 220293 $ 103,266 $ 121,000 $ 67857
2010 34,474 220,292 103,267 123,000 67,857
2011 34,474 220,293 103,266 128,000 67,857
2012 34,483 220,292 103,267 133,000 67,857
2013 - 220,293 103,266 139,000 67,857
2014 - 220,292 103,267 144,000 67,857
2015 - 220,293 103,266 150,000 67,858
2016 - 220,292 103,267 156,000 -
2017 - 220,293 103,266 © 162,000 -
2018 - 220,292 103,267 169,000 -
2019 - 220,293 103,267 175,000 -
2020 - 220,292 103,267 - -
2021 220,292 103,267 - -

‘$ 137,905 $2,863,802 $1,342466 $1.600,000 § 475,000 .

interlocal Cooperative Agreement

The City entered into an interfocal cooperative agreement in October 2006 to contribute $2,500,000 to
IDBK for the purchase of property for commercial development in the City. This contribution is to be
made in five installments of $500,000 per year beginning July 2008.

Bonds Payable

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for both governmental and business-type
activities. The general obligation bonds issued for business-type activities have been reflected in the

appropriate enterprise fund.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt (continued)

Bonds Payable (continued)

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. General
obligation bonds currently outstanding and to be repaid by governmental activities are as follows:

Amount

Interest Authorized

Payable Issue and Interest Outstanding
Debt Service Fund Dates Date Issued Rates June 30, 2008
1999 General Obligation
Refunding and Improvement 03/01, 09/01 04/01/99  $5975,000 4.000%4250% § 445,000
2001 General Obligation 03/01, 09/01 11/06/01 2,620,000 1.750%-4.000% 365,000
2002A General Obligation ‘
Refunding 01/01, 07/01 08/238/02 12,500,000 4.000%-4.500% 5,500,000
2003 General Obligation 04/01, 16/01 12/01/03 7,900,000 2.000%-4.200% 5,960,000
2004 General Obligation
Refunding 03/01, 09/01 03/15/04 5,825,000 .2.200%-5.000% 5,825,000
2004 General Obligation .
School 05/01, 11/01 12/06/04 2,850,000 3.000%-4.000% 2,335,000
2005 General Obligation 02/01, 08/01 12/06/05 2,826,250 3.750%-5.000% 2,537,500
2006 General Obligation 02/01, 08/01 12/20/06 13,320,000 3.625%-4.100% 13,320,000
2007 General Obligation 08/01, 02/01 06/08/07 19,360,000 4.000%-5.000% 18,360,000
2008A General Obligation 03/01, 09/01 06/12/08 7,480,000 3.500%4.375% 7,480,000
2008B General Obligation 0301, 09/01 06/12/08 11,165,000 3.500%-4.375% 11,165,000

Total Generai Obligation Bonds

{before deferred debt refunding costs and net premiums of $338,402)
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt (continued)

Bonds Payable (continued)

General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds issued April 1, 1999, debt service requirements
to maturity are as follows:
Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2009 $ 445000 §$ 18913 § 463,913

$ 445000 $ 18913 §$ 463,913

General Obligation Bonds issued November 6, 2001, debt service requirements to matusity are as
follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 180000 $ 14600 $ 194,600
2010 185,000 7,400 192,400

$ 365000 $ 22000 $ 387,000

General Obligation Bonds issued August 28, 2002, debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009

$ 5500000 $ 247,500 $5,747,500

$ 5500000 $ 247,500 $5,747,500
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Long<erm debt(continued)

Bonds Payable (continued)

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2003, issued December 1, 2003, debt service requirements to maturity

are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 500000 $ 218114 § 718114
2010 525,000 203,114 728,114
2011 550,000 187,364 737,364
2012 560,000 169,489 729,489
2013 580,000 149,889 729,889
2014 600,000 129,589 729,589
2015 625,000 107,089 732,089
2016 650,000 82,870 732,870
2017 670,000 56,870 726,870
2018 700,000 29,400 729,400

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2004, issued March 15, 2004, debt service requirements to

rnaturity are as follows:

$ 5,960,000 $17333,788 $7,293,768

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2009 $ 245000 $ 254365 $ 499,365
2010 730,000 248,975 978,975
2011 950,000 219,775 1,169,775
2012 985,000 181,775 1,166,775
2013 1,040,000 142,375 1,182,375
2014 1,085,000 90,375 - 1,175,375
2015 565,000 36,125 601,125
2016 225,000 7,875 232,875

$ 5825000 $1,181640 $ 7,006,640
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. [Long-term debt (continued)

Bonds Payable (continued)
General Obligation Schocl Bonds, Series 2004, issued December 6, 2004, debt service requirements to
maturity are as follows:
Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2009 $ 180,000 $ 85365 $ 265365
2010 : 185,000 79,515 264,515
2011 200,000 73,503 273,503
2012 200,000 67.002 267,002
2013 200,000 60,003 260,003
2014 200,000 53,002 253,002
2015 220,000 45,803 265,803
2016 225,000 37,662 262,662
2017 225,000 29,000 254,000
2018 250,000 20,000 270,000
2019 250,000 10,000 260,000

$ 2,335000 § 560,855 §2.895,855

General Obligaﬁon Bonds, Series 2005, issued December 6, 2005, debt service requirements to maturity

are as follows:
Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 153125 $ 97973 $ 251,098
2010 157,500 92,230 249,730
2011 166,250 86,324 - 252574
2012 175,000 80,090 265,090
2013 175,000 73,527 248,527
2014 183,750 66,965 250,715
2015 192,500 51,777 250,277
2016 201,250 48,152 249,402
2017 218,750 38,090 256,840
2018 218,750 31,527 250,277
2019 227,500 24,965 252,465
2020 231,875 18,140 250,015
2021 236,250 9,155 245 405

$ 2537500 § 724915 $3,262415
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt (continued)
Bonds Payable (continued)

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006, issued December 20, 2006, debt service requirements to maturity
are as folfows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ . - §$ 525221 § 525221
2010 525,000 525,221 1,050,221
2011 545,000 504,222 1,049,222
2012 565,000 482 421 1,047,421
2013 585,000 459,821 1,044,821
2014 610,000 437,884 1,047,884
2015 630,000 415,009 1,045,009
2016 655,000 391,384 1,046,384
2017 680,000 367,640 1,047,640
2018 710,000 342990 1,052,990
2019 735,000 314,590 1,049,590
2020 765,000 285,190 1,050,190
2021 795,000 " 254,590 1,049,590
2022 830,000 222,790 1,052,790
2023 865,000 189,590 1,054,590 -
2024 900,000 154,990 1,054,990
2025 935,000 118,990 1,053,990
2026 975,000 81,590 1,056,590
2027 1,015,000 41,615 1,056,615

$13,320,000 $6,115748 $ 19,435,748
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAHLED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt (continued)
Bonds Payable (continued)

 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2007, issued June 8, 2007 debt service requirements to maturity are as
follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ - $ 818050 $ 818,050
2010 745,000 818,050 1,563,050
2011 775,000 784,525 1,559,525
2012 810,000 . 751,588 1,561,588
2013 840,000 719,187 1,559,187
2014 875,000 685,588 1,560,588
2015 910,000 650,587 1,560,587
2016 945,000 614,188 1,559,188
2017 1,000,000 566,937 1,566,937
2018 1,040,000 516,938 1,556,938
2019 1,075,000 475,337 1,550,337
2020 1,115,000 432,338 1,547,338
2021 1,160,000 387,737 1,547,737
2022 1,210,000 339,888 1,549,888
2023 1,260,000 269,975 1,549,975
2024 1,315,000 238,000 1,953,000
2025 1,370,000 182,112 1,552,112
2026 1,425,000 123,888 1,648,888
2027 1,490,000 63,325 1,553,325

$ 19,360,000 $9,458,238 §$ 28,818,238
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt (continued)
Bonds Payable {continued)

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2008A, issued June 12, 2008 debt service requirements to maturity are
as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2009 $ - $ 216,364 $ 216,364
2010 275,000 300,738 575,738
2011 285,000 291,113 576,113
2012 295,000 281,138 576,138
2013 305,000 270,813 575,813
2014 315,000 258,613 573613
2015 330,000 246,013 576,013
2016 340,000 232,813 572,813
2017 355,000 219,213 574,213
2018 370,000 206,788 576,788
2019 380,000 191,988 571,988
2020 400,000 176,788 576,788
2021 415,000 160,788 575,788
2022 430,000 144,188 574,188
2023 450,000 - 126,988 . 576,988 -
2024 465,000 108,425 573,425
2025 485,000 88,663 573,663
2026 505,000 68,050 573,050
2027 530,000 46,588 576,588
2028 550,000 24,063 574,063

$ 7,480,000 $3,660,135 § 11,140,135
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt (continued)

Bonds Payable {continued)

General Obligation Bonds, Series 20088, issued June 12, 2008 debt service requirements to maturity are

as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ - $ 322959 $ 322959
2010 410,000 448,900 858,900
2011 425,000 434,550 859,550
2012 . 440,000 419,675 859,675
2013 455,000 404,275 859,275
2014 470,000 386,075 856,075
2015 490,000 367,275 857,275
2016 510,000 347,675 857,675
2017 530,000 327,275 857,275
2018 550,000 308,725 858,725
2019 570,000 286,725 856,725
2020 595,000 263,925 858,925
2021 620,000 240,125 860,125
2022 645,000 215,325 860,325
2023 670,000 189,525 859,525
2024 695,000 161,888 856,888
2025 725,000 132,350 857,350
2026 755,000 101,537 856,537
2027 790,000 69,450 859,450
2028 820,000 35,875 855,875

$ 11,165,000 $5,464,109 $ 16,629,109
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt (continued)
Bonds Payable (continued)

Total annual debt service requirements for Generat Obligation Bonds are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 7203125 $ 2819424 § 10,022,549
2010 3,737,500 2,724,143 6,461,643
2011 3,896,250 2,581,376 6,477,626
2012 4,030,000 2,433,178 6,463,178
2013 4,180,000 2,279,890 6,459,890

Next Five Years 19,570,000 8,857,781 28,427,781

Next Five Years 15,930,625 5,250,650 21,181,275

Next Five Years 15,745,000 1,841,399 17,586,399

$74,292,500 $28,787,841 $ 103,080,341

Business-type Activities:
Bonds and notes issued for the acquisition of facilties for the enterprise funds and to be paid from

enterprise funds are recorded in the applicable enterprise fund. Bonds of utility districts acquired by the
city are reported in the appropriate fund. Maturities on July 1 are considered as maturing on the

preceding June 30th,

Notes Payable

General obligation notes currently outstanding and the funds from which they will be paid are as follows:

Date Amount Interest Outstanding
tssued Issued Rate June 30, 2008
Water Fund:
State Revolving Loan - DWF#98-009  o3s2s/98  $ 1,937,015 3.675% $ 1,333,348
Sewer Fund:
State Revolving Loan - SRF#98-119 02128199 2,364,929 3.550% $ 1870397
State Revolving Loan - SRF#99-123 06/28/99 2,731,550 - 3.550% 1,997,056
State Revolving Loan - SRF#07-197 11/29/07 19,366,647 3.140% 590,264
State Revolving Loan - SRF#07-200 07115107 2,850,000 3.200% -
Total $ 4257717
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt (continued)

Notes Payable (continued)

The City has entered into agreements for revolving credit lines with the Tennessee Department of
Environment and Conservation and the Tennessee Local Development Authority to provide 15 year
financing for the following projects:

A $1,937,015 fine to provide for water system improvements consisting of the replacement of water
lines along Sevier Avenue.

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal interest Total
2009 $ 122016 $ 465956 § 168972
2010 126,574 42,396 168,970
2011 131,306 37,668 168,974
2012 136214 32,760 168,974
2013 141,305 - 271672 168,977
2014 145,586 22,392 168,978
2015 152,065 16,908 168,973
2016 157,748 11,220 . 168,968
2017 163,644 5,328 168,972
2018 55,890 428 56,318

$ 1,333,348 § 243,728 $ 1,577,076

A $2,364,929 line to provide for the repair and replacement of sewer lines throughout the Mad
Branch sewer shed and along Sevier Avenue.

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Tolal
2009 $ 147480 § 56916 '$ 204,39
2010 152,801 51,568 204,389
2011 158,315 46,080 204,395
2012 164,027 40,368 204,395
2013 169,946 34,452 204,398
2014 176,078 28,320 204,398
2015 182,432 21,960 204,392
2016 189,015 15,384 204,399
2017 195,824 8,556 204,390
2018 134,469 1,800 136,269

$ 1,670,397 $ 305424 $1,975821
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt (continued)

Notes Payable (continued)

A $2,731,550 line to provide for improvements.

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 167,724 $ 68,184 $ 235908
2010 173,766 62,136 235,902
2011 180,041 55,860 235,901
2012 186,538 49,368 235,906
2013 193,268 42,636 235,904
2014 200,243 35,664 235,907
2015 207,467 28,440 235,907
2016 214,954 20,952 235,906
2047 222,710 13,188 235,898
2018 230,746 5.160 235,906
2019 19,599 696 20,295

$ 1,997,056 § 382,284 $2,379,340

in addition to the above loans, the City has two state revolving credit lines which are stiil bémg drawn
against for projects that are not yet complete. Curmrently, the City is making interest payments only on
these loans. Principal payments will begin upon substantial completion of the projects.

A $19,366,647 credit line is available for upgrades to the waste water treatment facility. Upon completion
of the project this loan wilf be paid over 20 years. $590,264 had been drawn as of June 30, 2008.

A $2,850,000 credit line is available for sewer system replacement projects in the West Kingsport area.
At June 30, 2008, the City had not drawn any of these funds. Upon completion of the project, the loan will
be paid over 15 years.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt (continued)

Notes Payable (continued)

Total debt service requirements to maturity for enterprise fund long-term debt notes payable are as

follows:
Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 437,220 $ 172,056 §$ 609,276
2010 453,141 156,120 609,261
2011 469,662 139,608 609,270
2012 486,779 122,496 609,275
2013 504,519 104,760 609,279
Next Five Years 2,629,881 235,700 2,865,581
Thereafter 609,863 696 610,559

$ 5591065 § 931,436 $ 6,522,501

.The interest calculation for the State Revolving Loan is based on the outstanding balance at year end for
the item listed above. It is unknown at this time when the City will begin principal payments; therefore, the
entire $590,264 is included in the “thereatter” information. ,
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON Al L FUNDS {CONTINUED}:

E. Long-term debt (continued)
Bonds Payable.

General obligation bonds to be repaid from enterprise funds currently outsténdirxg and the funds from
which they will be paid are as follows:

Amount
Interest Authorized
Payable Issue amd Interest Outstanding
Dates Date Issued Rates June 30, 2008
Solid Waste
Management Fund
2005 Generat Obligation 02/01,08/01  12/06/05 $ 403,750 3000%-5.000% $ 362,500
Total Solid Waste Management Fund (before bond premiums of {$1,492)) 5 362,500
Cattails at MeadowView
Golf Course Fund
1935 Golf Course-TMBF Monthly 05/22/95  $4,750,000 Variable $ 1,336,000
1998 Golf Course-TMBF Monthty 1998 1,450,000 Variable 1,004,000

Total Cattails at MeadowView Golf Course Fund $ 2,340,000
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {CONTINUED):

E. Long-tenm debt {continued)

Bonds Payable {continued)

: Amount

interest - Authorized

Payable Issue and Interest Quistanding
Water Fund Dates Date Issued Rates June 30, 2008
1978 Waterworks 01/01, 07/01 04/06/78 $ 450,000 5.000% $ 180,000
1999 General Obligation : :
Refunding Improvement-Water 03/01, 09/01 04/01/99 2,820,000 4.000%-6.500% 210,000
2001 Water System
Improvement 03/01, 09/01 11/06/01 2,140,000 2.300%-4.650% 295,000
2002 Water and Sewer :
Revenue and Tax 06/01, 12/01 121202 2,725,000 3.000%-4.350% 1,900,000
2003 Water and Sewer ’ :
Revenue and Tax 04/01, 10/01 12/01/03 1,315,000 2.000%-4.200% 990,000
2004 Water and Sewer
Revenue and Tax
Refunding 03/01, 09/01 Q3/01104 4,126,955 2.050%-5.000% 3,995,000
2004 General Obligation
Refunding 03/01, 09/01 03/15/04 2,200,000 3.500%-5.000% 2,200,000
2004 Water and Sewer _
Revenue and Tax 05/01, 11/01 12106/04 1,625,000 2.750%4.125% 1,330,000
2005 Water and Sewer
Revenue and Tax 06101, 12101 12/06/05 870,000 3.000%-5.000% 780,000
2006 Water and Sewer .
Revenue and Tax 02/01, 08/01 12/20/06 316,463 3.750%-5.000% 307,044
2008 Water and Sewer
Revenue and Tax 03’01, 09/01 06112108 1.200.000 3.500%-4.250% 1,200.000

Total Water Fund {before deferred debt refunding costs of $389,309

and net premiums and discounts of ($491,304))
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {(CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt (continued)

Bonds Payable {continued)
Amount

Interest Authorized

Payable Issue and Interest Outstanding
Sewer Fund Dates Date Issued Rates June 30, 2008
1999 Sewer Refunding 03/01, 09/01 04/01/99 $3,155,000 4.000%-6500% 3 235,000
2001 Sewer Systemn
improvement 03/01, 09/01 11/06/01 2,790,000 2.300%-4.650% 390,000
2002 Water and Sewer
Revenue and Tax 06/01, 12/01 12/12002 5,275,000 3.000%-4.350% 3,670,000
2003 Water and Sewer
Revenue and Tax 04/01, 10/01 120103 4585000 2.000%-4.200% 3,475,000
2004 Water and Sewer
Revenue and Tax
Refunding 03/01, 09/01 03/01/04 12,473,045 2.000%-5.000% 10,665,000
2004 General Obligation
Refunding 03/01,09/01 ~ 0311504 3,010,000 2.200%-5.000% 3,010,000
2004 Water and Sewer
Revenue and Tax 11/01, 05/01 12/06/04 6,275,000 2.750%-4.125% 5,120,000
2005 Water and Sewer
Revenue and Tax 06/01, 12/01 12/06/05 4,100,000 2.750%-4.125% 3,680,000
2006 Water and Sewer
Revenue and Tax 02/01, 08/01 12/20/06 1,363,537 3.750%-5.000% 1,322,956

Total Sewer Fund {before deferred debt refunding costs of $641,738
and net premiums and discounts of ($1,105,884))
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt (continued)

Bonds Payable (continued)

Solid Waste Management Fund issue 2005 Series General Obligation Bonds December 6, 2005, debt

service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2008 $ 21875 $ 139% $ 35871
2010 22,500 13,176 35,676
2011 23,750 12,332 36,082
2012 25,000 11,441 36,441
2013 25,000 10,504 35,504
2014 26,250 9,566 35,816
2015 27,500 8,254 35,754
2016 28,750 6,879 35,629 -
2017 31,250 5,441 36,691
2018 31,250 4,504 35,754
2019 32,500 3,566 36,066
2020 33,125 2.5 35,716
2021 33,750 1,308 35,058

$ 362500 $ 103,558 $ 466,058
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt {continued)

Bonds Payable {continued)

Payments on the Cattails at MeadowView Golf Course TMBF bonds issued in 1995 fotaling $4,750,000
and in 1998 totaling $1,450,000 are made to the State monthly. These bonds mature in 2011 and 2017,
respectively.

The interest rate on the TMBF Golif Course Bonds is variable monthily based upon the current rate
determined by the remarketing agent pius 1.25% not to exceed the maximum amount allowed by law.
Due to this, the principal debt service requirement to maturity for both of these funds is as follows:

Fiscal Year TMBF Series
Ending June 30 1998 1995 Total
2009 3 85000 $ 421500 $ 510,500
2010 94,000 445,000 539,000
2011 99,000 469,500 568,500
2012 105,000 - 105,000
2013 . 110,000 - 110,000
2014 117,000 - 117,000
2015 123,000 - 123,000
2016 : 130,000 - 130,000

2017 137,000 - 137,000

$ 1,004,000 §$1,336,000 § 2,340,000

Fall Branch Uility District Bonds issued April 6, 1978, debt service requirements fo maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 20000 % 9000 $ 29,000
2010 20,000 8,000 28,000
2011 20,000 7,000 27,000
2012 20,000 6,000 26,000
2013 20,000 5,000 25,000
2014 25,000 4,000 29,000
2015 25,000 2,750 27,750
2016 30,000 1,500 31,500

$ 180,000 $ 43250 $ 223,250
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt (continued)

Bonds Payable (continued)

Water Fund portion of General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 1999, issued April
1, 1999, debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 210,000 $ 8925 $ 218925

$ 210,000 $ 8925 § 218,925

2001 Water System Improvement bonds, Series 2001, issued November 6, 2001, debt service
requirements to maturity are as foliows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 145000 $ 11800 $ 156,800
2010 150,000 6,000 156,000

$ 295000 § 17,800 $ 312,800
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

. 4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt {continued)
Bonds Payable (continued)

Water and Sewer Revenue and Tax Bonds, Series 2002, issued December 12, 2002, debt service
requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 . $ 180,000 $ 76,040 $ 256,040
2010 195,000 69,740 264,740
2011 200,000 62,427 262427
2012 205,000 54,428 259,428
2013 210,000 46,227 256,227
2014 . 215,000 37,828 252,828
2015 220,000 29,227 249,227
2016 235,000 20,428 255,428
2017 240,000 10,440 250,440

$ 1,900,000 $ 406,785 $ 2,306,785

Water and Sewer Revenue and Tax Bonds, Series 2003, |ssued December 1, 2003, debt service
requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal interest Total
2009 $ 85000 $ 36234 $ 121,234
2010 85,000 33,684 118,684
2011 90,000 31,134 121,134
2012 95,000 28,209 123,209
2013 95,000 24,884 119,884
2014 100,000 21,559 121,559
2015 105,000 17,809 122,809
2016 - 110,000 13,740 123,740
2017 110,000 8,340 119,340
2018 115,000 4,830 119,830

$ 990,000 $ 221,423 $1,211,423
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {CONTINUED).

E. Long-term debt (continued)
Bonds Payable {continued)

Water and Sewer Revenue and Tax Bonds, Series 2004, issued March 1, 2004, debt service
requirements to maturity are as foliows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal interest Total
2009 $ 555000 $ 199,750 $ 754,750
2010 585,000 - 172,000 757,000
2011 615,000 142,750 757,750
2012 650,000 112,000 762,000
2013 505,000 79,500 584,500
2014 530,000 54,250 584,250
2015 555,000 27,750 582,750

$ 3995000 $ 788000 $4,783,000

General Obligations Bonds. Series 2004, issued March 15, 2004, debt service requirements to maturity
are as follows: :

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Toltal
2009 $ - $ 97200 $ 97,200
2010 215,000 97,200 312,200
2011 385,000 88,600 473,600
2012 395,000 73,200 468,200
2013 405,000 57,400 462,400
2014 430,000 37,150 467,150
2015 180,000 . 15,650 195,650
2016 190,000 6,650 196,650

$ 2,200,000 § 473,050 $2,673,050
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt (continued)
Bonds Payable (continued)

Water and Sewer Revenue and Tax Bonds, Series 2004, issued December 6, 2004, debt service
requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 § 100,000 §$ 48411 $ 148,411
2010 105,000 45411 150,411
2011 110,000 42,261 152,261
2012 110,000 38,686 148,686
2013 115,000 34,946 149,946
2014 126,000 30,921 150,921
2015 125,000 26,601 151,601
2016 130,000 21,851 151,851
2017 135,000 16,781 151,761
2018 135,000 11,381 146,381
2019 145,000 5,981 150,981

$ 1,330,000 §$ 323,231 $1,653,231

Water and Sewer Revenue and Tax Bonds, Series 2005, issued December 6, 2005, debt service
requirements to malurity as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 45000 §$ 29944 § 7494
2010 50,000 28,256 78,256
2011 50,000 26,381 76,381
2012 50,000 24 506 74,506
2013 55,000 22,631 77,631
2014 55,000 20,569 75,569
2015 ‘ 55,000 17,819 72,819
2016 60,000 15,069 75,069
2017 70,000 12,069 82,069
2018 75,000 9,969 84,969
2019 70,000 7,719 77,719
2020 70,000 5,619 75,619
2021 75,000 2 906 77,906

$ 780,000 $ 223457 $1,003457
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. ‘Long-term debt (continued)

Bonds Payable (continued)

Water and Sewer Revenue and Tax Bonds, Series 2006, issued December 20, 2006, debt service
requirements to maturity are as follows for the Water portion:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Tolal
2009 $ 11,302 $ 12865 § 24,167
2010 12,244 12,300 24,544
2011 12,244 11,688 23,932
2012 12,244 11,076 23,320
2013 13,186 10,525 23,711
2014 13,186 . 9932 23,118
2015 14,128 9,338 23,466
2016 15,070 8,702 23,772
2017 15,070 8,024 23,094
2018 - 18,837 7.459 26,296
2019 18,837 6,753 25,590
2020 18,837 6,046 24,883
2021 18,837 5,317 24,154
2022 18,837 4,563 23,400
2023 18,837 3,810 22,647
2024 18,837 3,056 21,893
2025 18,837 2,303 21,140
2026 18,837 1,549 20,386
2027 18,837 777 19,614

$ 307,044 $ 136,083 $ 443127
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt (continued)

Bonds Payable (continued)

" Water and Sewer Revenue and Tax Bonds, Series 2008, issued June 12, 2008 debt service

requirements fo maturity are as foliows for the Water portion:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2009 $ - $ 33558 $ 33,558
2010 65,000 46,644 111,644
2011 70,000 44,044 114,044
2012 70,000 41,594 111,594
2013 75,000 39,144 114,144
2014 75,000 35,519 111,519
2015 80,000 33,694 113,894
2016 85,000 30,894 115,894
2017 85,000 27,706 112,706
2018 90,000 24,306 114,306
2019 95,000 20,706 115,706
2020 95,000 16,906 111,906
2021 100,000 13,106 113,106
2022 105,000 9,006 114,006
2023 110,000 4675 114,675

$ 1,200,000 $ 422,702 $1,622,702
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED);

E. Long-term debt (continued)

Bonds Payable {continued)

Sewer Refunding Bonds, Series 1999, issued Aprit 1, 1999, debt service requirements to maturity are as
follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Inferest Total
2009 $ 235000 $ 9988 $ 244,088

$ 235000 $§ 9988 § 244,988

Sewer System Improvement bonds, Series 2001, issued November 6, 2001, debt service requirements
to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 190,000 $ 15600 $ 205600
2010 200,000 8,000 208,000

$ 390000 $ 23600 $ 413,600

Water and Sewer Revenue and Tax Bonds, Series 2002, issued December 12, 2002, debt service
requirements to maturity are as folkows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 350000 $ 146920 $ 496,920
2010 365,000 134,670 499,670
2011 380,000 120,983 500,983
2012 395,000 105,783 500,783
2013 405,000 89,983 494 983
2014 420,000 73,783 493,783
2015 430,600 56,983 486,983
2016 455,000 39,783 494,783
2017 470,000 20,445 490,445

$ 3670000 $ 789,333 $4,459,333
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Long-tem debt (continued)
Bonds Payable (continued)

Water and Sewer Revenue and Tax Bonds, Series 2003, issued December 1, 2003, debt service
requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 295000 § 127185 $ 422185
2010 315,000 118,335 433,335
2011 310,000 108,885 418,885
2012 320,000 98,810 418,810
2013 - 335,000 87,610 422 610
2014 350,000 75,885 425,885
2015 , 360,000 62,760 422,760
2016 390,000 48,810 438,810
2017 390,000 33,210 423,210
2018 410,000 17,220 427 220

$ 3475000 $ 778710 $ 4,253,710

Water and Sewer Revenue and Tax Bonds, Series 2004, issued March 1, 2004, debt service requirements
to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 1395000 $ 528250 $ 1,923,250
2010 1,465,000 458,500 1,923,500
2011 1,550,000 385,250 1,935,250
2012 1,625,000 307,750 1,932,750
2013 1,315,000 226,500 1,541,500
2014 1,370,000 160,750 1,530,750
2015 1,445,000 92,250 1,537,250
2016 500,000 20,000 520,000

$ 10,665,000 $2,179,250 $ 12,844,250
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt (continued)
Bonds Payable (continued)

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2004, issued March 15, 2004, debt service requirements to
maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 40000 $ 132505 $ 172,505
2010 285,000 131,625 416,625
2011 500,000 120,225 620,225
2012 520,000 100,225 620,225
2013 540,000 79,425 619,425
2014 575,000 52,425 627,425
2015 295,000 23,675 318,675
2016 255,000 8,925 263,925

$ 3,010,000 § 649,030 $ 3,659,030

Water and Sewer Revenue and Tax Bonds, Series 2004, issued December 6, 2004, debt service
requirements to maturity are as follows for the sewer portion: '

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 400,000 $ 186,341 $ 586,341
2010 395,000 174,341 569,341
2011 415,000 162,491 577,491
2012 430,000 149,004 579,004
2013 445,000 134,384 579,384
2014 460,000 118,809 578,809
2015 475,000 102,249 577,249
2016 495,000 84,199 579,199
2017 515,000 64,894 579,894
2018 535,000 44,294 579,294
2019 555,000 22,893 577,893

$ 5,120,000 $1,243899 $ 6,363,899
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt (continued)
Bonds Payable {(continued)

Water and Sewer Revenue and Tax Bonds, Series 2005, issued December 6, 2005, debt service
requirements to maturity are as follows for the sewer portion:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 225000 $ 142438 $ 367438
2010 . 230,000 134,000 364,000
2011 240,000 125,375 365,375
2012 250,000 116,375 366,375
2013 255,000 107,000 362,000
2014 270,000 97,437 367,437
2015 285,000 83,938 368,938
2016 295,000 69,687 364,687
2017 305,000 54,938 359,938
2018 310,000 45,787 355,787
2019 325,000 36,488 361,488
2020 340,000 26,737 366,737
2021 350,000 13,563 363,563

$ 3,680,000 $1,053,763 $4,733,763
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {(CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt {continued)
Bonds Payable {continued)

Water and-Semr Revenue and Tax Bonds, Series 2006, issued December 20, 2006, debt service
requirements to maturity are as follows for the sewer portion:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Tolal
2009 $ 48698 $ 55434 $ 104,132
2010 52756 52,999 105,755
2011 52,756 50,362 103,118
2012 52756 47,724 100,480
2013 56,814 45,350 102,164
2014 56,814 42,793 99,607
2015 60,872 40,237 101,109
2016 64,930 37,497 102,427
2017 64,930 34,575 93,505
2018 81,163 32,141 113,304
2019 81,163 29,007 110,260
2020 81,163 26,053 107,216
2021 81,163 22,908 104,071
2022 81,163 19,662 100,825
2023 81,163 16.415 97,578
2024 81,163 13,169 94,332
2025 81,163 9,922 91,085
2026 81,163 6,676 87,839
2027 81,163 3,348 84,511

$ 1322956 §$ 586,362 $1,909,318
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Long-term debt (continued)
Bonds Payable (continued)

Total annual debt service requirements for enterprise fund bonds, excluding the estimated principal
requirements on the TMBF bonds totaling $2,340,000 are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Jotal
2009 $ 4,551,875 $ 1,922,384 $ 6,474,259
2010 4,812,500 1,744,881 6,557,381
201 5,023,750 1,542,188 6,565,938
2012 5,225,000 1,326,811 6,551,811
2013 4,870,000 1,101,013 5,971,013
Next Five Years 17,400,000 2,469,728 19,869,728
Next Five Years 3,034,375 334,394 3.368,769
Next Five Years 400,600 40,800 440,800
$45,317,500 $10.482.199 $55.799.699

The total on the statement of net assets has been reduced by deferred debt refunding costs of
$1,013,047 and the net premiums and discounts of ($1,598,680).

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
‘Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due within
- Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Govemmentat aciivities:
General Obligation Debt $ 63,481,250 § 18645000 $ 7,833,750 § 74,292,500 $ 7,203,125
Less: Deferred amounts (874,000) - (95,000} {779,000} -
for refunding
Plus: Premiums and discounts 434,000 112,398 105,801 440,597 -
Total Bonds Payable 63,041,250 18,757,398 7,844,551 73,954,097 7,203,125
Compensated Absences 2,764,000 442 479 - 3,206 475 3,206,479
Interlocal Cooperalive
Agreement 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 500,000
Capital Outlay Note 1,600,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 1,600,000 121,000
Energy Efficiency Note - 475,000 - 475,000 67,857
Notes Payable-Slate 4,702,207 - 358,033 4,344,174 358,034
Totals $ 74607457 $ 23674877 $ 12,202,584 $ 86,079,750 $ 11,456,495
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4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED):

E. Llong-term debt (continued)

Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Business-type activities:
General Obligation Debt $14108750 § - $4886250 $ 9222500 $ 1,372.375
Water and Sewer Revenue
and Tax Bonds 39,750,000 1,200,000 2,515,000 38,435,000 3,690,000
Less: Deferred amounts
for refunding {1,.219,374) - (188,327) {1,031,047) -
. Plus: Premiums and discounts 1,799,126 17,007 217,453 1,598,680 -
Total Bonds Payable 54,438,502 1,217,007 7,430,376 48,225,133 5,062,375
Compensated Absences 473,325 38,320 - 511,645 511,645
State Revolving Notes 5,422,648 590,264 421,847 5,591,065 437,220
Totals $60,334475 $ 1845591 $7,852223 $ 54,327,843 $ 6,011,240

F. Closure and postclosure costs

The City operates a demolition landfill with a remaining life of approximately 30 years. Upon closure, federal
and state laws require the landfill to be monitored for two years at the City’s expense. Based upon
information received from the State of Tennessee, the expected postclosure costs are immaterdal to the solid
waste management fund and therefore have not been recorded. The demolition landfill does not fall under
the same monitoring guidelines as a sanitation landfill.

5. OTHER INFORMATION:
A. Risk management

The City carries insurance coverage through the Tennessee Municipal League (TML) Risk Management Pool
for general fiability, automobile, and emors and omissions coverage. Although TML is a risk management
pool and the policy contains an assessment clause, no assessment has been levied during the time the City
has paricipated in this program. The City's workers' compensation coverage is seli-funded and administered
by Tri-State Claims Service. The City carries a specific excess workers’ compensation reinsurance
agreement through Midwest Empioyers Reinsurance Corporation. An actuarial study was conducted by the
City for the period ended November 2005 for workers' compensation. At June 30, 2006, a portion of fund
balance was reserved based on the high figure of the discounted calaulation at 3% for investment income
basis. At June 30, 2006, this figure was estimated to be $2,070. An additional actuarial study for workers'
compensation was conducted for the period ended September 2007, and at June 30, 2008, the City
concluded that this figure is not materially different from figures calculated on the November 2005 study;
therefore, the existing reservation was not adjusted. The City carries additional coverage for public officials
and other employees through U.S. Fidelity and Guarantee, Travelers and Western Surety insurance
companies and properly insurance through Hartford, Travelers and Continental Casualty insurance
companies. There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the prior year, and the City
has not had any settlements in the last four years, which were not covered by insurance.
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5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

A. Risk management (continued)

Effective January 1, 2003, health insurance for government employees has been provided through a self-
funded insurance program administered by United Healthcare of the River Valley. Premiums are
evaluated annually based on historical expenditures and expected cost increase frends. An actuarial
study was conducted through October 2005. Health insurance coverage for school system employees is
provided through the State of Tennessee Local Education Program.

Premium equivalents for paricipation in the seif-funded program are established annually based on
quotations from the third-party administrator for projected expenses. The City carries its own stop-loss
insurance.

A reconciliation of workers’ compensation claims for the past two years are as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
Claims Accrued, Beginning $ 272,293 $ 207,764
Claims Incumed 1,093,512 921,529
Claims Paid {1,024,136) 857,000
Claims Accrued, Ending $_341.669 $_272293

The City's estimate of claims accrued at year end is based on actual claims paid during April, May, and
June 2008. . ,

B. Contingencies
Primary govermment

The City has recorded an estimated arbitrage rebate liability in the water, sewer, and solid wasle
management funds. The bond issues, through 2003, have been independently reviewed and it has been
determined that no arbitrage rebate liability exists for those years. At June 30, 2008, the water fund,
sewer, and solid waste funds had arbitrage rebate liabilities recorded of $76,316, $295,884, and $6,803,
respectively. These arbitrage rebate liabilities are not directly related to any bond issue; however, are
recorded in anticipation of future liabilities.

The City attorney advises that there are no known cases pending against the City, which would not be
covered by insurance. The City has entered into several construction contracts in the various funds,
which were not completed at year-end. To account for these liabilities, the City reserves a portion of fund
balance in the appropriate governmental fund. In the proprietary funds, the City internally designates a
portion of retained earnings.
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5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

B. Contingencies {continued)
Primary government (continued)

The City received an “Agreed Order & Assessment” from the State of Tennessee dated May 18, 1995,
concerning the inflow and infiliration systems of the City's sewer system. The City must be in full
compliance by 2011. The eslimated total cost of the project is $25,000,000. Currently, the City has a
strict schedule for the project to be completed in phases. Each phase has a deadline that the City must
meet to avoid a $20,000 fine. Thus far, all deadlines have been met. The City is funding the project with
a State Revolving Loan, which is recorded in the sewer fund, and a General Obligation Bond.

The City received a “Consent Order” from the State of Tennessee dated October 25, 2005, conceming
the waste water treatment plant of the City's sewer system. The City must be in full compliance by 2011.
The estimated total cost of the project is $25,000,000. Currently, the City has a strict schedule for the
project to be completed in phases. Each phase has a deadline that the City must meet to avoid an
$18.000 fine. Thus far, all deadlines have been mel. The City plans to fund the project with a State
Revolving Loan, which is recorded in the sewer fund, and a General Obligation Bond.

Beginning in 2005, the Sullivan County Economic Development Partnership (SCEDP) issued $2,500,000
Revenue Bond, Series 2005, of which, the City is contingently liable for 31%, or $775,000. During May
2007, SCEDP issued an additional $6,500,000 Revenue Bond, of which the City is contingently liable for
$2.015,000. Both bond issue proceeds were issued to finance the acquisition of considerable acreage
near Tn-Cities Regionat Airport for the purpose of establishing a new industrial park. The bonds are
secured by the assignment of the revenue from the industrial park. The related liability (“Sullivan County
Notes") is on the books of Sulfivan County. The SCEDP is responsible for making the bond payments.
However, in the event that they default, the City woukl have to pay off the bonds if they wanted to retain
the project. As of June 30, 2008, $8,810,000 was outstanding on these bands. '

Discretely presented component unit

The IDBK issued $6,140,000 Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds, Series 2003A, and $100,000
Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds, Series 20038. The bond proceeds were disbursed directly fo a
non-profit organization (NPO) which will use the funds to finance the acquisition and rehabilitation of a
257-unit multifamily housing project located in Kingsport, Tennessee. The bonds are secured by
assignment of the revenue from the project, in accordance with an agreement between the IDBK and the
NPO, which was created for the specific purpose of acquiring and operating the aforementioned project.
The said project and related liability are on the NPO's books. The NPO is responsible for making the
bond payments. However, in the event that the NPO defaults, the iDBK would have to pay off the bonds
if they wanted to retain the project. As of June 30, 2008, $5,925,000 was outstanding on these bonds.
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5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

C. Pension plan
City of Kingsport plan
Plan description

Employees of the City are members of the Political Subdivision Pension Plan (PSPP), an agent multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System
(TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Benefils are
determined by a formula using the member's high five-year average salary and years of service.
Members become eligible to retire at the age of 60 with five years of service or at any age with 30 years
of service. A reduced retirement benefit is available to vested members at the age of 55. Disability
benefils are available to active members with five years of service who become disabled and cannot
engage in gainful employment. There is no service requirement for disability that is the result of an
accident or injury occurring while the member was in the performance of duty. Members joining the
system after July 1, 1979 become vested afler five years of service and members joining prior to July 1,
1979 were vested after four years of service. Benefit provisions are established in state statute found in
Title 8, Chaplers 34-37 of the Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA). State statutes are amended by the
Tennessee General Assembly. Political subdivisions such as the City participate in the TCRS as
individual entities and are liable for ail costs associated with the operation and administration of the plan.
Benefit improvements are not applicable to a political subdivision unless approved by the chief governing
body. :

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the PSPP. That regort may be obtained by writing o Tennessee Treasury
Department, Consotidated Retirement System, 10™ Floor Andrew Jackson Buiiding, Nashville, Tennessee

37243-0230 or can be accessed at hitp:/fireasury.state.tn.usfters/PS/.

Funding policy

The City has adopted a noncontributory retirement plan for its employees by assuming employee
contributions up to 5.00% of annual covered payroll.

The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the rate for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2008 was 16.36% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirement of plan members is set by
state statute. The contribution requirement for the City is established and may be amended by the TCRS
Board of Trustees.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

C. Pension plan (continued)
City of Kingsport plan (continued)
Annual pension cost

For the year ending June 30, 2008, the City's annual pension cost of $5,546,001 to TCRS was equal to
the City’s required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the July
1, 2005 actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age actuarial cost method. Significant actuanal
assumptions used in the valuation include (a) rate of return on investment of present and future assets of
7.50% a year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 4.75% (graded) annual rate (no
explicit assumption is made regarding the portion atfributable to the effects of inflation on salaries), (c)
projected 3.50% annual increase in the Social Security wage base, and (d) projected post retirement
increases of 3.00% annually. The actuarial value of assets was determined using technigues that smooth
the effect of short-ferm volatility in the market value of total investments over a five-year period. The
City's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount on a dosed basis.
The remaining amortization period at July 1, 2005 was 18 years. An actuarial valuation was performed as
of July 1, 2007, which established contribution rates effective July 1, 2008.

Trend Information
Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Oblgghon
_ June 30, 2008 $5,546,001 100.00% ' -
June 30, 2007 5,215,211 100.00% -
June 30, 2006 4,145,617 100.00% -
June 30, 2005 4,072,000 100.00% -
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5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

C. Pension plan {continued)
Kingsport City Schools Plan
Plan description

The Kingsport City Schools contribute to the State Employees, Teachers, and Higher Education
Employees Pension Plan (SETHEEPP), a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the TCRS. TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits to
plan members and their beneficiaries. Benefits are determined by a formula using the member's high
five-year average salary and years of service. Members become eligible to retire at the age of 60 with
five years of service or at any age with 30 years of service. A reduced retirement benefit is available to
vested members who are at least 55 years of age or have 25 years of service. Disability benefits are
available to active members with five years of service who become disabled and cannot engage in gainful
employment. There is no service requirement for disability that is the result of an accident or injury
occurming while the member was in the performance of duty. Members joining the plan on or after July 1,
1979 are vested after five years of service. Members joining prior to July 1, 1979 are vested after four
years of service. Benefit provisions are established in state statute found in Title 8, Chapters 34-37 of the
TCA. State statutes are amended by the Tennessee General Assembly. Cost of living adjustments
{COLA) are provided to retirees each July based on the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index
(CPl) during the previous calendar year. No COLA is granted & the CPi increases less than one-half
percent. The annual COLA is capped at three percent.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the SETHEEPP. That report may be obtained by writing to the Tennessee
Treasury Department, Consolidated Retirement System, 10" Floor Andrew Jackson Building, Nashville,
Tennessee 37243-0230 or can be accessed at www.treasury.state.tn.us.

Funding policy

Most teachers are required by state statute to contribute 5.00% of salary to the plan. The employer
contribution rate for City Schools is established at an actuarially determined rate. The employer rate for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008 was 6.24% of annual covered payroll. The employer contribution
requirement for City Schools is established and may be amended by the TCRS Board of Trustees. The
employer’s contributions to TCRS for the years ending June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $1,762,000
$1,700,866 and $1,458,036, respectively, equat to the required contributions for each year.
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5. OTHER INFORMATION ( CONTINUED):

D. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

From an accrual accounting perspective, the cost of postemployment healthcare benefits, like the cost of
pension benefits, generally shou!d be associated with the periods in which the cost occurs, rather than in
the future year when it will be paid. In adopting the requirements of GASB Statement No., 45 during the

Postemployment Healthcare Plan — City of Kingsport

Plan description

retirement. Employees hired after June 1, 2007, must have a minimum of 25 years of service with the
City, be at least 55 years old, and must have been enrolled in the health insurance provided by the City
for three fuil consecutive years immediat prior to retirement or have 30 years of service with the City
and have been enrolled in the health insurance provided by the City for one ful? year immediately prior to
retirement.

The number of participants as of July 1, 2007, the effective date of the OPEB valuation, foliows. There
have been no significant changes in the number covered or the type of coverage since that date. ‘

Active employees 1,435
Refired employees 143
Spouses of retired employees 51
Retired employees eligible for death benefits only 544
Total 2,173

102



'CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

D. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS {OPEB) (continu;d)

Postemployment Healthcare Plan — City of Kingsport (continued)

Funding policy |

The premium requirements of plan members are established and may be amended by the BMA. The
plan is self-insured and financed on a pay-as-you-go basis with the risk shared equally among the

participants. Claim liabilities of the plan are periodically computed using actuarial and statistical
techniques to establish premium rates.

City of Kingsport

Annual OPEB Cost and net OPEB Obligation Retiree Plan -

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 3,166,263
Interest on the Net Pension Obligation (NPO) -
Adjustment to the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) -
Annual OPEB cost 3,166,263
Amount of contribution {647,366)
Increase/Decrease in Net Pension Obligation (NPQO) 2,518,697
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year -
Net OPEB obligation - endlng of year $ 2,518,897

Percentage of Annual Net OPEB

OPEB Cosi Obligation
Year End* Plan Annual OPESB Cost Contributed at Year End
06/30/08 City Retiree $ 3,166,263 20% $ 2,518,897

*Data not available for two preceding years.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED}:

D. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) {continued)
Postemployment Healthcare Plan — City of Kingsport {continued)
Funded Status and Funding Process

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2008, was as follows (dollars in thousands):

City of Kingsport
Retiree Plan

Actuarial valuation date 07/01/07
Actuarial accrued liability {AAL) 5 30,541
Actuarial value of plan assets -
Unfunded actuarial accrued Kability (UAAL) $ 30,541
Actuarial Value of Assets as a % of the AAL 0%
Coveted payroll {active plan members) $ 21,931
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 139%

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the vailue of reported amounts and assumptions about the

probability of events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared to past expeclations and new estimates are made about the
future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI)
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear frend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liability for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Calcutations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan at the
time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to

that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that perspective,

actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assels.

In the July 1, 2007, actuarial valuation, the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 5 percent investment rate of return {net of administrative expenses) and
an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 10.5 percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of
5 percent after ten years. Both rates include a 3 percent inflation assumption. The unfunded actuarial
accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of payroll on a closed basis over a 30 year
period beginning with July 1, 2007.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

5. OTHER INFORMATION {CONTINUED):

D. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued)
Postemployment Healthcare Plan - Kingsport City Schools
Plan description

The Kingsport City Schools participate in the state-administered Teacher Group Insurance Plan and
Medicare Supplement Plan for healthcare benefits. For accounting purposes, the plans are agent
multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plans. Benefits are established and amended by an insurance
commitiee created by Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA) 8-27-302 (teachers) and TCA 8-27-701
(Medicare Supplement). Prior to reaching the age of 65, all members have the option of choosing a
preferred provider organization (PPO), point of service (POS), or health maintenance organization {HMO)
plan for healthcare benefits. Subsequent to age 65, members who are also in the state's retirement
system may paricipate in a state-administered medicare supplement plan that does not include
pharmacy. The plans are. reporied in the State of Tennessee Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR). The CAFR is available on the state's website at hitp:/lennessee.govffinancefac/cafr.html

Funding policy

The premium requirements of plan members are established and may be amended by the insurance
committee. The plans are self-insured and financed on a pay-as-you-go basis with the risk shared
equally among the participants. Claims liabilities of the plan are periodically computed using actuarial
and statistical techniques to establish premium rates. The employers in each plan develop their own
confribution policy in terms of subsidizing active employees or retired employees’ premiums since the
committee is not prescriptive on that issue. The slate provides a partial subsidy to Local Education
Agency pre-65 teachers and a full subsidy based on years of service for post-65 teachers in the Medicare
Supplement Plan. The required contribution rate for refired teachers ranges from 17 10 23 percent based
on their years of service. During the year ended June 30, 2008, Kingsport City Schools contributed
$324,554 for the teacher group plan and $113,000 for the medicare supplement plan.

_ Teacher Group  Medicare Supplement
Annual OPEB Cost and net OPEB Obligation Plan Plan

Annual Required Contribution {ARC) $ 1,900,000 $ 1,928,000
Interest on the Net Pension Obligation (NPO) - -
Adjustment to the Annual Required Contribution {(ARC) - -

Annual OPEB cost 1,900,000 1,928,000
Amount of contribution (324,554) (113,000)
Increase/Decrease in Net Pension Obligation (NPO) 1.575,446 1,815,000

Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year -

Net OPEB obligation - ending of year $ 1,575,446 $ 1,815,000
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):
D. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) {(continued)

Postemployment Healthcare Plan — Kingsport City Schools (continued)

Percentage of Annual Net OPEB

) OPEB Cost Obligation
Year End* Plan Annual OPEB Cost Contributed at Year End
06/30/08 Teacher Group $ 1,900,000 17% $ 1,575,446
06/30/08 Medicare Supp 1,928,000 6% 1,815,000

*Data not available for two preceding years.
Funded Status and Funding Process

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2008, was as follows (dollars in thousands):

Teacher Medicare
Group Plan Supplement Plan
Actuarial valuation date 07/01/07 07/01/07
Actuariat accrued liability {AAL) $ 17503 $ 18,268
Actuarial value of plan assets - -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 17,503 3 18,268
Actuanal Value of Assets as a % of the AAL 0% 0%
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 24795 % 24,795.
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 70% 74%

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumplions about the
probability of events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the
future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI)
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued

liability for benefits.
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan at the
time of each valuation and on the pattem of sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to
that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that perspective,
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. .

In the July 1, 2007, actuarial valuation, the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 4.5 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses)
and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 11 percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate
of 6 percent after ten years. Both rates include a 3 percent inflation assumption. The unfunded actuarial
accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of payroll on a closed basis over a 30 year
period beginning with July 1, 2007.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

E. Joint Ventures

Tri-Cities Airport Commission

Tri-Cities Airport Commission (the Airport) is jointly govemed by representatives of Johnson City,
Kingsport; Bristol, Tennessee,; Bristol, Virginia and Washington and Sullivan Counties, Tennessee. The
City initially contributed 20 percent of the start-up costs of the Airport in 1934 and has not contributed
further since 1967. The City is represented by two of the Airport's twelve commissioners. The Airport

prepares its own separate financial statements.

The participating governments do not record any

halances for the Airport. If the Airport ceased operations, disposition of its net assets would be controlied

by the Federal Aviation Administration.

investments or subsequent retained eamings.

The City would not be guaranteed a retum of its initial

Complete financial statements for the individual joint venture may be obtained at the administrative

offices of.

Tr-Cities Airport Commission
P.O. Box 1055
Blountville, TN 37617

Audited information as of June 30, 2008 is presented below:

Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses
Depreciation
Amortization

Other Income
Capital Contributions

Change in Net Assels
Net Assets, July 1

Net Assets, June 30
Total Assets

Total Liabilities
Total Net Assets
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Tr-Cities |
Alrport |
Commission |

$ 6,117,331
(5.415,059)
(2,889,942)

(13,501)
878,429
4,330,262

3,007,520
47,167,818

$ 50,165,338

$ 59,600,781
(9.435.443)
$ 50,165,338



CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

5. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED):

E. Joint Ventures (continued)
Phipps Bend Joint Venture

The IDBK entered into a joint venture with the Hawkins County Industrial Development Board (HCIDB) to
purchase and develop land known as Phipps Bend for industrial purposes.

According to the Joint Venture Agreement, HCIDB shalt have an 80% interest and IDBK shall have a 20%
interest in the profit and losses of the Joint Venture. However, each Venturer shall have an equal 50%
right to control, manage, operate and otherwise deal with the Joint Venture in all matters and respects. A
separate capital account is maintained for each Venturer. No Venturer shall withdraw any part of its
original or additional capital account without the express written agreement of both parties respectively.
IDBK's investment in the Phipps Bend Joint Venture is valued as follows:

Note Receivable from Phipps Bend Venture $ 501,312
20% interest in capital of Phipps Bend Joint Venture 154,069
Total Investment $_655,381

F. Economic dependency

A material portion of the City's property tax revenue is derived from one taxpayer, the loss of which would
have a material effect on the City. During the tax years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, the taxes
assessed on the above mentioned taxpayer accounted for approximately 27% and 29%, respecitively, of
total property taxes assessed.

G. Prior Period Adjustments
Discretely Presented Component Units

The accumulated depreciation refated to equipment for ECD was understated in the prior year as a result
of an efor in the amount of $4,436. Accordingly net assels was overstated in the same amount and
subsequently decreased and restated in the current year.

The Due from Other Governments balance for ECD was overstated in the prior year as a result of over
accrual of expected revenues from the State of Tennessee in the amount of $17,347. Accordingly net
assets was overstated in the same amount and subsequently decreased and restated in the current year.

H. Subsequent Events

On August 5, 2008, the City's BMA approved a resolution authorizing indebtedness of not to exceed
$10,000,000 with a loan through the Tennessee Municipal Bond Fund (TMBF) to fund the acquisition and
installation of an automated meter reading and leak detection system. TMBF loans have a variable

interest rate.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

City of Kingsport, Tennessee Schedule of Funding Progress - Defined Benefit Pension Plan

(Dollar amounts expressed in thousands})

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

July 1, 2007 $
July 1, 2005
July 1, 2003
July 1, 2001

Actuarial Actuarial
Value of Accrued
Assets Liability (AAL)
)] (b}
117,466 $ 142,266 $
104,770 129,058
97,199 106,661
91,035 101,307
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Unfunded
AAL
(UAAL)
(b-a)

24,800
24,288

9,462
10,272

Funded
Ratio

(alb)

82.57%
81.18%
91.13%
89.86%

Covered
Payroll

(c}

31,672
30,278
27,888
26,519

UAAL asa
-Percentage of
Covered
Payroll

{(b-a)/c)

78.30%
80.22%
33.93%
38.73%



CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLANS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

City of Kingsport-Schedule of Funding Progress - Postemployment Health Care Plan

(Dollar amounts expressed in thousands)

UAAL as a
Actuarial - Actuarial  Actuarial  Unfunded Percentage of
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered Covered
Date Pian Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
(a} (o) (b-a) (alb) {c) {{b-a)/c}
July 1, 2007 City Retiree $ - % 30541 $30541 000% $ 21,931 139%
Kingsport City Schools-Schedule of Funding Progress - Postemployment Health Care Plan
(Dollar amounts expressed in thousands)
UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Percentage of
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered Covered
Date Plan Assefs Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payrall Payroll
(a) " (b) (b-a) {ab) (€) ((b-a)fc)
July 1, 2007 Teacher Group $ - % 17,503 $17,503 000% % 24,795 70%

July 1, 2007 Medicare - 18,268 18,268 0.00% 24795 74%
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with
Final Budget

Original | Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amount {Negative)

REVENUES:

Investment Eamings VI 0 1727978  § 1.727,978

Total Revehues 0 0 1,727,978 1,727,978
EXPENDITURES:

Principal 7,916,600 12,192,445 12,191,783 662

Interest 2,578,500 2,493,688 2,449,755 44133

Bond Issuance Costs 0 91,972 85,747 6,225

Miscellaneous 20,100 43,512 7,590 35,922

Total Expenditures 10,515,200 14,821,817 14,734,875 86,942

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues .

Over (Under) Expenditures (10,515,200) (14,821,817) (13,006,897) 1,814,920

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): .

Transfers, Net 10,515,200 10,222,105 8,901,430 {1,320,675)

Issuance of Debt 0 4,207,932 4,207,932 0

Premium on Debt {ssued 0 25273 25.273 0

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ' 10,515,200 14,455,310 13,134,635 {1,320,675)

Net Change in Fund Balances 0 {366,507) 127,738 494,245

Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 0 366,507 1,045,040 678,533
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 0 3 0 $ 1172778 $ 1.172,778
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See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY
June 30, 2008

Criminal Justice
Forfelture Assistance Total Public
Fund Drug Fund Grant Fund Safety Funds
ASSETS: ' T

Cash $ 0 274 o 3 274

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 83,450 176,955 153 260,558

Restricted Investments 16,137 0 0 16,137
Total Assets 3 99,587 177,229 153 $ 276,969
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 3 0 0 0 $ 0
Total Liabilities 0 0 0 0
Fund Balances:

Reserved for:

Encumbrances 0 0 0 0
Projects 16,137 0 0 16,137

Unreserved, Undesignated 83,450 177,229 153 260,832
Total Fund Balances 99,587 177,229 153 276,969
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 99,687 177,229 153 3 276,969

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Federal Govemnment
State Government
Fines and Forfeiturés
Investment Eamings

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:

General and Administrative

Public Safety

Capital Outlay

Total Expénditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, July 1, 2007

Fund Balances, June 30, 2008

Criminal Justice

Forfelture Asslstance Total Public
Fund Drug Fund Grant Fund Safety Funds

$ 0 3 0 0 3 0
0 14,327 0 14,327

0 198,860 0 198,860

646 0 0 646

646 213,187 0 213,833

0 2,427 o 2,427

0 119,345 3,548 122,893

0 10,500 0 10,500

0 132,272 3,648 135,820

646 80,915 (3,548) 78,013

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

646 80,915 {3,548) " 78,013

98,941 96,314 3,701 198,956

$ 99,587 $ 177,229 153 ¥ 276,969

See Independent Auditor's Report.

115



CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - TRANSPORTATION

June 30, 2008

Federal Transit Metropolitan Total
Administration Planning State Street Transportation
Fund Office Fund Ald Fund Funds
ASSETS:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 0o 3 0 3 0 $ 0 ‘
Due from Other Governments 415,348 102,534 210,957 728,839
Total Assets $ 415,348 $ 102,534 $ 210,957 3 728,839
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 21862 $ 14,073 3 82,865 $ 99,100
Due to Other Funds 234 525 65,578 46,001 346,104
Total Liabilities 236,687 79,651 128,866 445,204
Fund Balances:
Reserved for Encumbrances 225,966 24,696 54 250,716
Unreserved, Undesignated (47,30%5) {1,813) 82,037 32,919
Total Fund Balances 178,661 22,883 82,091 283,635
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 415,348 $ 102,534 $ 210,957 $ 728,839

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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For the Flscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - TRANSPORTATION

REVENUES:
Federal Government
State Govemment
Charges for Services
Investment Eamings

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Transportation
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Batances, July 1, 2007

Fund Balances, June 30, 2008

Federal Transh Metropolitan Total
Administration Planning State Street Transportation
Fund Office Fund Aild Fund Funds
$ 679,308 $ 225,329 $ 0 $ 904,637
: 223,008 4,894 1,263,555 1,491,457
97,070 0 0 97,070
0 0 1 1
999,386 230,223 1,263,556 2,493,165
|
960,512 281,658 1,879,006 3,121,176 : ‘
245,900 0 160,241 406,141 ‘
|
1,206,412 281,658 2,039,247 3,527,317
(207,026) (51,435) (775,691) (1,034,152)
264,750 55177 775,691 1,095618
0 0 0 0
264,750 55177 775,691 1,095,618
57,724 3,742 0 61,466
120,937 19,141 82,091 222,169
$ 178,661 $ 22,883 $ 82,091 $ 283,635

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - EDUCATION
June 30, 2008
School
Nutrition Special
Services Scheol Public Law Palmer Total Education
Fund Projects Fund  93-380 Fund Center Fund Funds

ASSETS: ’

Cash $ 1,099,619 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 1,099,619

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 62,919 0 0 0 62,919

Long Temn Cerlificates of Deposit 215,434 0 0 0 215,434

Investments 0 0 0 64,208 64,208

Due from Other Governments 0 283,120 623,392 0 906,512

Inventories 119,902 0 0 0 119,902
Total Assets $ 1,497.874 $ 283120 $ 623392 $ 64,208 $ 2,468,594
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $ 1,360 $ 6,572 $ 9,760 $ 0 $ 17,692

Other Liabilities 0 2,278 2,795 D 5,073

Due to Other Funds 0 268,623 610,837 ] 879,460

Deferred Revenue 28,143 5!647 0 1] 33,790
Total Liabilities 29,503 283,120 623,392 1] 936,01 é
Fund Balances:

Reserved for Encumbrances 0 28,969 69,170 0 98,139

Reserved for Inventories 119,202 0 0 0 119,902

Unreserved, Undesignated 1 ,_348.469 {28,969) {69,170} 64,208 1,314,538
Total Fund Balances 1,468,371 0 0 64,208 1,532,579
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 1,497,874 $ 283,120 $ 623,392 $ 64,208 $ 2,468,594

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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" CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - EDUCATION
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

School
Nutrition Special
Services School Public Law Palmer Total Education
Fund Projects Fund  93-380 Fund Center Fund Funds
REVENUES: ,
Federal Government $ 1,270,148 $ 122247 $ 3,178,477 $ 0 $ 4 570,872
State Govemment 26,920 1,036,704 : 0 0 1,063,624
Charges for Services 1,410,981 3,677 0 0 1,414,658
tnvestment Eamings’ 8,980 0 0 2,570 11,550
Contributions and Donations 130,080 0 0 0 130,080
Total Revenues 2,847,109 1,162,628 3,178,477 2,570 7,190,784
EXPENDITURES:
School Food Service 2,713,324 0 0 0 2,713,324
School Federal Projects 0 o 3,054,828 ] 3,064,828
Education 0 1,474,242 0 0 1,474,242
Capital Outlay ) 0 96,390 111,960 ) 208,350
Total Expenditures 2,713,324 1 .|5?0|.632 3,_1 76,788 0 7,460,754
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 133,785 (408,004) 1,689 2,570 . (269,960)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 0 417,679 0 0 417,679
Transfers Out 0 (4,000) 0 0 {4,000
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 413,679 0 0 413,679
Net Change in Fund Balances 133,785 5,675 1,689 2,570 143,719
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 11334._566 (5,675) {1,689) 61,638 1,'388,860
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 $ 1,468,371 $ 0 $ 0 $ 64,208 $ 1,532,679

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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- CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE

CRIMINAL FORFEITURE FUND

SCHEDULE CF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Federal Government
Fines and Forfeitures
Investment Eamings
Contributions and Donations

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:

Public Safety

Capital Qutlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007

Fund Balances, June 30, 2008

Variance with
: Final Budget
Original’ Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amount (Negative)
¢ $ 0 3 0o 3 0
8,000 8,000 0 (8,000)
] 0 646 646
0 0 0 0
8,000 8,000 646 (7,354)
8,000 8,000 0 8,000
0 0 0 0
8,000 8,000 0 8,000
0 0 646 646
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 646 646
0 0 98,941 98,941
0 $ 0 $ 99,587 $ 99,587
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See Independent Auditor's Report.



CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
DRUG FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

_For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES:
State Govemment -
Fines and Forfeitures
Contributions and Donations

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:

Generat and Administrative

Public Safety

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers In
Transfers Qut

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007

Fund Balances, June 30, 2008

Varlance with
Final Budget
Orlglnal ’ : Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amount {Negative)
0 3 0 14,327  § 14,327
95,000 112,550 198,860 86,310
0 0 0 0
95,000 112,550 213,187 100,637
2,500 2,500 2,427 73
59,800 134,775 119,345 15,430
55,000 10,595 10,500 95
117,300 147,870 132,272 . 15,598
(22,300) (35,320) 80,915 116,235
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 |
(22,300) (35,320) 80,915 116,235
22,300 35,320 96,314 60,094
0 $ 0 177,229  $ 177,229
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
STATE STREET AID FUND
SCHEDULE GF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with
Final Budget
Original’ - Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amount (Negative)
REVENUES:
State Government - $ 1,208,700 $ 1,283,009 $ 1,263,555 5 (19,454)
investment Eamings 0 0 1 1
Total Revenues 1,298,700 1,283,009 1,263,556 (19,453)
EXPENDITURES: _
Highways and Streets 2,053,700 2,031,849 1,879,006 152,843
Capital OQutlay 60,000 160,330 160,241 89
Total Expenditures 2,113,700 2,192,179 2,039,247 152,932
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues ' ) )
Over (Under) Expenditures (815,000) (909,170) (775,691) 133,479
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 760,000 775,691 775,691 0
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 760,000 775,691 775,691 0
Net Change in Fund Balances ‘ (55,000) (133,479) 0 133,479
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 55,000 133,479 82,091 (51,388)
Fund Balances, Junhe 30, 2008 $ 0o 3 0 § 82,091 $ §2,091

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
REGIONAL SALES TAX REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Local Option Sales Tax
Investment Earmings

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Miscellaneous

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Variance with

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers In
Transfers Qut

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007

Fund Balances, June 30, 2008

‘ Final Budget
Original’ o Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amount (Negative)
$ 3,280,700 $ 3280700 $ 3214653 $ (66,047)
50,000 50,000 53,528 3,528
3,330,700 3,330,700 3,268,181 (62,519)
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
3,330,700 . 3,330,700 3,268,181 (62,519)
0 0 0 0
(3,330,700) (3,330,700) (3,116,790) 213,810
(3,330,700) (3,330,700 (3,116,790) 213,910
0 0 151,391 151,391
0 0 901,590 - 901,590
$ 0 $ 0 $ 1,052,981 $ 1,052,981

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
VISITORS ENHANCEMENT FUND

SCHEDUL.E OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with
Final Budget
Original . Actual Posltive
Budget Final Budget Amount {Negative)
REVENUES: '
Other I 0 $ 0 0 $ 0
Total Revenues 0 ‘ 0 0 0
EXPENDITURES:
Culture and Recreation 0 175,240 3,500 171,740
Capital Outlay 0 50,000 0 50,000
Total Expenditures 0 225,240 3,500 221,740
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues |
Over {Under) Expenditures . -0 - {225,240) (3.500) 221,740 ‘
\
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 0 . 324,300 324,201 (99)
Transfers Out 0 (85,000) (78,190) 6,810 |
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 239,300 246,011 6,711
Net Change in Fund Balances 0 14,060 242 511 228,451
Fund Baiances, July 1, 2007 0 (14,0_60) 0 14,060
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 $ 0 3 0 242 511 $ 242 511

See independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
EASTMAN ANNEX TAX FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES:
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Miscellaneous

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers Qut

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007

Fund Balances, June 30, 2008

Variance with
Final Budget
Original” Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amount {Negative)
$ 0 $ 0 $ 0 3 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
1,550,500 1,422 400 1,422 418 18
{1,550,500) (1,462,452) (1,462,286) 166
0 (40,052) (39,868) 184
0 (40,052) (39,868) 184
0 40,052 191,845 151,793
$ 0 $ 0 $ 151,977 $ 151,977

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
STEADMAN CEMETERY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with
Final Budget
Original’ . Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amount {(Negative)
REVENUES:
Investment Eamings $ 100 $ 100 $ 738 638
Total Revenues 100 -~ 100 738 638
EXPENDITURES:
Maintenance 100 100 0 100
Total Expenditures 100 100 0 100
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues ‘ .
Over (Under) Expenditures 0 0 738 738
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 0 0 0 0
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 0 0
Net Change in Fund Balances 0 0 738 738
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 0 0 17,710 17,710
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 $ 0 $ - 0 $ 18,448 $ 18,448

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
PUBLIC LIBRARY COMMISSION FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Criginal . Actual Posltive
Budget Final Budget Amount {Negative)
REVENUES: ;
Investment Earings $ 500 $ 500 $ 398 $ (102)
Contributions and Donations 0 3,883 3,883 0
Total Revenues 500 4,383 4,281 (102)
EXPENDITURES: _
Culture and Recreation 500 15,500 15,000 500
Total Expenditures 500 15,500 15,000 500
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 0 {11,117) {10,719) 398
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 0 0 0 0
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ) 0 0 0 0
Net Change in Fund Balances 0 (11,117) (10,719) 398
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 0 11,117 11,845 728
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 $ 0 $ 0 $ 1,126 $ 1,126

Variance with
Final Budget

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
BAYS MOUNTAIN PARK FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with
Final Budget
Original - : Actual Poslitive
Budget Final Budget Amount (Negative)
REVENUES:
Investment Eamings $ 4,000 3 4,000 $ 3,323 $ (677)
Contributions and Donations 18,000 18,000 23,000 5,000
Total Revenues 22 000 22,000 26,323 4,323
EXPENDITURES:
Culture and Recreation 45,000 45,000 17,867 27,133
Total Expenditures 45,000 45,000 . 17,867 27,133
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues .
Over (Under) Expenditures {23,000) (23,000) 8,456 31,456
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 0 0 8,504 8,504
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 8,504 8,504
Net Change in Fund Balances (23,000) (23,000} 16,960 39,960
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 23,000 23,000 75,240 - 52,240
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 $ 0 $ 0 $ 92,200 $ 92,200

See independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
SENIOR CITIZENS ADVISORY BOARD FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Varlance with
Final Budget
Original . Actual Positive
Bugget Final Budget Amount {Negative)
REVENUES:
Charges for Services 5 66,300 $ 66,300 $ 100,308 $ 34,008
Investment Eamings 500 500 1,271 771
Contributions and Donations 500 9,800 7,046 {(2,754)
Total Revenues 67,300 76,600 108,625 32,025
EXPENDITURES:
Cuiture and Recreation 67,300 103,135 95,818 7,317
Total Expenditures 67,300 103,135 95818 7,317
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 0 (26,535) 12,807 39,342
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 0 0 0 0
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 0 0
Net Change in Fund Balances 0 {26,535) 12,807 39,342
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 0 26,535 26,554 19
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 $ 0 $ 0 $ 39,361 $ 39,361

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
SCHOOL NUTRITION SERVICES FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with
Final Budget
Original : Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amount (Negative)
REVENUES:
Federal Govemment $ 1,194,550 $ 1,194,550 $ 1,270,148 3 75,508
State Govemment 28,400 28,400 26,920 (1,480)
Charges for Services 1,471,950 1,471,950 1,410,981 (60,969)
Investment Eamings 9,550 9,550 8,980 {570)
Contributions and Donations 73,550 73,550 130,080 56,530
Total Revenues 2,778,000 2,778,000 2,847,109 69,109
EXPENDITURES: . .
School Food Service 2,778,000 2,778,000 2,713,324 64,676
Total Expenditures 2,778,000 2,778,000 2,713,324 64,676
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures . 0 0 133,785 133,785
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).
Transfers In 0 0 0 0
Transfers Out . 0 0 0 0
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) 0 0 0 0
Net Change in Fund Balances 0 0 133,785 133,785
Fund Batances, July 1, 2007 0 0 1,334,586 1,334,586
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 $ 0 $ 0 $ 1,468,371 $ 1,468,371

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
PALMER CENTER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Final Budget
Original : Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amount (Negative)
REVENUES:
Investment Eamings $ 500 $ 500 3 2,570 $ 2,070
Total Revenues 500 500 2,570 2,070
EXPENDITURES:
Capital Outlay 500 500 0 500
Total Expenditures 500 500 0 500
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues : .
Over (Under) Expenditures 0 0 2,570 2,570
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 0 0 0 0
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 0 0
Net Change in Fund Balances 0 0 2,570 2,570
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 0 0 61,638 61,638
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 3 0 3 0 3 64,208 $ 64,208

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
ALLANDALE TRUST FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Final Budget
Orlginal- : Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amount {(Negative)
REVENUES:
Investment Eamings $ 6,000 $ 6,000 $ 5,658 $ (342)
Total Revenues 6,000 6,000 5,658 (342)
EXPENDITURES: ,
Culture and Recreation 6,000 6,000 0 6,000
Total Expenditures ' 6,000 6,000 0 6,000
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues ,
Over (Under) Expenditures : 0 0 5.658 5,658
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): _
Transfers In 0 0 0 0
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 0 0
Net Change in Fund Balances 0 : 0 5,658 5,658
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 0 0 167,326 167,326
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 $ I 0 3 172,984 $ 172,954

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2008
Fleet
Operations & Health
Maintenance Insurance Insurance Total Internat
Fund ~ Reserve Fund Fund Service Funds
ASSETS:
Cuyrrent Assels:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 1,547,796 $ 3,134383 $ 3,089,167 7,771,346

Accounts Receivable 1,190 132 4,431 5,753

Accrued Interest Receivable 240,831 73 0 240,904

Due from Other Govermments 5,656 0 0 5,656

Due from Other Funds 876,722 0 0 876,722

Inventories 386,923 0 0 386,923

Prepaids 0 125,231 0 125,231
Total Current Assets 3,059,118 - 3,259,819 3,093,598 9,412,535
Capital Assets:

Land 14,695 0 0 14,695

Machinery and Equipment 21,317,718 0 0 21,317,718

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (14,132,328) 0 0 {14,132,328)
Total Capital Assets 7,200,085 0 0 7,200,085
Other Assels:

Deposits 0 30,000 0 30,000
Total Other Assets 0 30,000 0 30,000
Restricted Assets:

Cash in Bank 448 565 . 0 0 446,565

Long Term Certificates of Deposit 3,800,000 500,000 0 4,300,000

Investments 120,344 0 0 120,344
Total Restricted Assets 4,366,809 500,000 0 4,866,909
Total Assels 14,626,112 3,789,819 3,093,598 21,509,529
LIABILITIES:

Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 105,084 167,257 821 267,162

Benefits Payable 0 341,669 900,000 1,241,669

Compensatled Absences Payable 74,213 10,068 4,654 88,835
Tota! Current Liabilities 183,297 508,994 905,475 1,597,766
Total Liabilities 183,297 508,994 905,475 1,597,766
NET ASSETS:

Invested in Capital Assels 7,200,085 0 0 7,200,085

Reserved for Encumbrances 824,027 0 0 824,027

Unrestricted 6,418,703 3,280,825 2,188,123 11,887,651
Total Net Assels $ 14,442,815 $ 3,280,825 $ 2,188,123 19,911,763

See Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

OPERATING REVENUE:
Charges for Sales and Services
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel Services and Benefils
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Insurance
Insurance Claims
Depreciation
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Expenses
Qperating Income (Loss)
NONOPERATING REVENUES:
Gain on Disposal of Fixed Assets
State Revenue
investment Eamings
Total Nonoperating Revenues
income (Loss) Before Transfers
Transfers In
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, July 1, 2007

Net Assets, June 30, 2008

Fleet
Operations & Health
Maintenance Insurance Insurance Total Internal
Fund Reserve Fund Fund Service Funds
$ 5221503 $ 1,887,516 $ 5694121 $ 12,803,140
0 9,060 0 9,060
5,221,503 1,896,576 5,694,121 12,812,200
1,083,859 206,896 55,273 1,346,028
2,847,765 6,281 1,643 2,855,689
86,314 146,931 71,119 204,364
2,384 337,406 274,630 614,420
0 1,509,106 4,694,110 6,203,216
1,402,053 0 0 1,402,053
67,576 0 264,195 331,771
5,489,951 2,106,620 5,360,870 12,957,541
{268,448) (210,044) 333,151 (145,341)
10,750 0 0 10,750
5,656 0. 0 5,656
357,255 158,010 121,976 637,241
373,661 158,010 121,976 653,647
105,213 (52,034) 455127 508,306
244,413 0 0 244,413
349,626 {52,034) 455,127 752,719
14,093,189 3,332,859 1,732,996 19,159,044
$ 14,442 815 $ 3,280,825 $ 2,188,123 $ 19,911,763

See independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Floot
Oporations & Health
Maintenance insurance Insurance Total Internal
Fund Resarve Fund Fund Service Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from Interfund Services Provided $ 5222537 - % 1,806,576 $ 5605073 $  12.814,186

Payments to Suppliers (3,084,771} (1,821,850) {5,313,725) (10,220,346}

Payments to Employees {1,076,543} {201,804) (54.214) {1,332,561)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operaling Activities 1,061,223 (127.078) 327134 1,261,279
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Advances from Cther Funds 149,778 0 0 149,778
Net Gash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 149,778 0 0 149,778
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:

Capital Transfers from Other Funds 244,413 0 0 244,413

Purchasa of Capital Assets {(2.131,085) 0 0 {2,131,986)

Proceeds from Sales of Capital Assets 14,550 0 0 14,550
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities {1,873,023) 0 0 (1,873,023)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of investments 1,500,000 0 0 1,500,000

Purchase of Investments {1,508,940) 0 0 (1,508,940)

Interest Received 184,397 - 158,050 121,976 454,423
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 175,457 158,050 121,976 455,483
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents (486,565) 30,972 449 110 ‘ {6.483)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1, 2007 2,480,926 3,103,411 2,640,057 B,224,394
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30, 2008 $ 1,994,361 $ 3,134.383 § 3,089,167 3$ 8,217,911
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED {USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (Loss) $ (268448) § {(210,044) § 333,151 $ (145,341)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
{Used) by Operating Actlvities:
Depreciation 1,402,053 0 0 1,402,053
(Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Accounts Receivable 1,034 0 952 1,986
inventory (20,440) 0 0 {20,440)
Prepaids 0 (7.287) 0 (7.287)
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable (60,292) 15,785 (8,028) (52,535)
Benefits Payable 0 69,376 0 69,376
Compensated Absences Payable 7,316 5,092 1,059 13,467
Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operaling Activities $ 1,061,223 $§ (127078) § 3E71M4 $ 1,261,279
RECONCILIATION OF GASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FROM
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS TO STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS:
Equity In Pooled Cash and Investments § 1,547,796 $ 3,134,382 $ 3,089,167 $ 7,771,346
Restricled Assets Cash in Bank 446,565 0 0 446,565
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30, 2008 $ 1,994,361 $ 3,134,383 $ 3,089,167 $ 8,217,811

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

'STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Endéd June 30, 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from Customers and Users

Payments to Suppliers

Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Tranisfer from Primary Govemmant

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Purchases of Capital Assets
Proceeds from Line of Credit

Grants

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related

Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of investments

Purchases of Invesiments
Loss on Sale of Property

Interest Received

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1, 2007

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30, 2008

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating Income (Loss}

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation

{Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Accounts Receivable
Due from Joint Venture
Due from Other Governments
Due from Primary Govemment

Land Held for Sale or Development

Prepaid ltems

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
QOther Payables

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Industrial Emergency
Development Communications
Board _ District
$ 5,541,127 $ 628,168
{4,423,478) _ {457,981)
1,117.649 170,187
- (54,352)
- 51
- {54,341)
149,887 -
58,965 _ 55,145
208,852 55,145
1,326,501 170,891
452,027 1,468,755
$ 1,778,528 5 1,639,746
H (293,893) s 94,850
3,084 86,737
(461,800) (2,672)
19,639 -
- (6.208)
1,298,150 -
{2.325) (1.467)
266,291 {853)
288,503 -
$ 1,117,649 H 170,187

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES BY SOURCE

June 30, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS:
Land $ 18,774,132 $ 13,288,906
Buildings 91,008,318 90,885,181
improvements Other Than Buildings 11,774,469 10,578,656
Equipment 12,900,876 12,481,672
Software 283,042 233,042
Infrastructure 258,598,229 257,689,751
Construction in Progress 51,208,271 38,486,595
Total Governmental Funds Fixed Assets $ 444,548,337 $ 423,693,803
INVESTMENTS IN GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS BY SOURCE:
General Obligation Bonds $ 320,622,432 $ 320,622,432
Contributions from Municipalities 576,947 576,947
Federal Granis 5,278,826 4,941,525
State Granis 286,061 286,061
County Grants 63,817 63,817
Federal Revenue Sharing 261,130 261,130
General Fund Revenue 15,778,255 15,725,875
Gifts 16,403,592 9,500,149
Forfeitures 51,873 35,148
Special Revenue Funds 30,222 477 29,400,469
QOperating Revenue 3,682,022 3,682,022
Capital Lease Purchase 110,545 110,545
Notes Payable 1,089 1,089
Construction in Progress 51,209,271 38,486,595
Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets $ 444548 337 $ 423,693,804

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to govemmental funds.

Accordingly, the capital assets reported inintemal service funds are excluded from the

above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as
govermnmental aclivities in the statement of net assets.

See Independert Auditor's Report.

139



(panupuod)

82.'991'852 S08'052'¢ 961611 vSe - 6££'81E ¥es 68zl L 0PZSIE - RO NN [ejoL
PLCBLOEPE GEQ T 6£0'G09°EPZ - - - - - WesAS shemybiH
0SS'E¥L'L ¥£Z'L56 gLe'a0e'e - - - - - wejsAg sedpug
¥o8'L12 - - - »e6'L1Z - - - eoueULUB
9£6'vBP'D 9£6'008°} £EE'6L0'Y - ES¥'LS rIZ'ezL'L - - sisans
eriEl - - - Zri'el - - . uocHEuBS
092'969 - 0Ly vE - 08}'€E 0le's oFZ'9LE - SAJ|BAIS|UILDY PUE [2i6UBD)

. [
92E'T6Y LI 2680'8L - £S0'E2 1go'voe'E T1gzet 190°L19°0 LI9SrS Ky9yBg 2(iqnd [BIOL
£ISGYE e - - - 8018612 SOFBL - - yojeds|g jeaued
206'€EL - . - . z.6'88 _ [Ty - UopeIUNWIWOD
060'v9'E 180'6L - - 6BE'GLL 650'G1T GIE'6EL'T 0eZ'ss a4
e51'erb's - - £S0'EZ Z51'ree Lrl'ap LTy 28%'08 8dj|od

:fefes oHGNd
18V PO E - E Toks) B668EC | 880 VLL 78261 - ewdojeas 1e0jsAU4 PUB JUI0UDO |8la)
LBE'FE - - - 19’ - - - Buuaeu|Bug
850'8¥2'C - - 0r0'¥e £90'8eZ'} Zok's9 £50'8.8 - uopepodsueL
8.0'1EL - - - GLSYE ¥e6'sh 615'059 - seopues Jusiudojaasq

Iuawdojeas(] 189|sAUd PUE DjWIOLODT
§Z.'081'6) £05'09E'S - 209'0F ¥l6ZER | 98€'9.0 90’89l | 85L2IS6 JUBWILLIBADS) [BI2USS) [BICL
€52 eE - - 0006 ESZ'vZl - - - uojjeuou) 3)ydeiBoen
oF¥'295'1 - - - OFF'ZOS°L - - - $0/AJOS UCBLLOJ;
2L0'CS - - S6b'S LIS'Ly - - - soueuld
888’0z - - - - 885'0Z - - 1oBeuep Ao
L0IZrLL 3 E0S'08E'S § - 3 €192 $ v0L'86 $ 18¥'559 ge0'gel't $ gsL'zis's $ JURLLLLIBACD) [RIBLED)
JURILLLIBADE) [BIBUDD)
i%j0l ssaiboad O anjonnsey| aIRMYOS wemdnby sBujp|Ing sBujpiing puTy AARRY PUR uofoung
UOPINISUGY uel Jeyjo
sjusweacsdi]
80OOZ ‘o€ INNF

ALIALLOY ONY NOLLONNZ A9 3TNAIHOS
SANNd TYLNSHNYIA0D J0 NOLLYEIdO FHL NI O3SN S1ISEY TYLIdVD
33SSINNIL ‘LHOJSOND 40 ALID

140



"podey Si0ypny Wepuadspu; seg

, "S]9SSE }BU JO JUBLIG)E}S B} U SAIANDE [BjustUwaAch S2 papniou) ale SpUMy 80lAIBS [BLUBIU JO RassE [BYdeD oy ‘Aleleuan "sjunotue
SAOGE O} oY PEPNOXS BIB SPUNY BJLAIBS W] By} U] peuode: sjesse |eyded ey} *Abuipicooy spuny (eweluweAct o} peleies seoue(eq josse |B)ded ey Aluc sjuasald einpayds sitl

LECOPS PP S LLZGDZIGS  GCCBBO6SZS  ZFOCEC &  OLS006ZrS GOPFLLIL §  GIEB00LGS  ZEhFLLELS sjeesy [eydeD Spund [BIUBWILIBACS) [B)0L
120°3LL'ZLL L58'99P'vE - 1ez'esl 19E'365'¥ 850'0L29 LIS PLS PO 056'v89'T uonecnp3
ZH 816'8¢ 800'0£0°6 Liv'ZTr'F - FIET) ivl'8lZe Z60'¥9Z 81 102'1£0'9 UONEBAIBY PUB BIMIND [BjoL
1EL'90E'0 - LWy TTFY - 8¥o'0L} - 919'029'E 000'EE} Aeiqn
ozs'oel'l - - - 9g9'z8l 998's¢ee 0S8'PPE 210'90¢ ajepuRily
0'Lz9'e 889'lzy - - o8y o 168'GLE TH0'Zo8 786'086 ulgunow sheg
§16'FZ6'E2 £2E'809'8 - - 88r'9LS 016°95'Z 956'¥0G'L 1Z2'L19'y uopealoay
Eri'ale's - - - 8Lt . ovs'1HIe'E - BUSTIHD Jojues

TOofee5aY pue aIming

=TT seaIb0Ig U] ednaniseiu] BIBMYOS iueludinb3z sBup|Ing shupling puwy fApoY pue uopdung
uopansuon uBy) leLpo
squeweaosdu)

800Z ‘o€ ANNP

ALIALLOY ANV NOLLONNA A8 3TNQ3HOS
SONNA TVANFWNLIACD 40 NOLLYHEIHO 3HL NI 038N SLISEV TVLIdVD
33SSANNIL ‘LUOdSONM 40 ALID

141



CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Govemnmental Governmental
Funds Capltal Funds Capital
Assots _ Assots
Function and Actlvity July 1, 2007 Additions Deolations Adjustments June 30, 2008
General Govemment:
General Government $  7.748,780 $ 9,720,199 $ (550,000) $ 502,092 $ 17,421,071
City Manager 20,889 - - - 20,889
Finance 53,072 - - - 53,072
Information Services 1,365,696 196,744 - - 1,562,440
Geographic Information 133,252 - - - 133,253
Total General Govemnmeni 9,321,690 9,916,943 {550,000) 502,092 19,180,725
Economic and Physical Development:
Development Services 738,078 - - (7,000) 731,078
Transportation 1,980,474 267,292 - 1,292 2,249,058
Engineering 38,325 25,036 - - 64,361
Total Economic and Physical Development 2,757,877 292,328 - - (5,708) 3,044 497
Public Safety.
Police 5,420,931 27,225 - - 5,448,156
Fire 3,624,993 40,007 - (1.000) 3,664,080
Communication 133,507 - - - 133,507
Central Dispatch 2,246,573 - - - 2,245,573
Totat Public Safety 11,426,004 67,322 - {1,000) 11,492,326
Public Works:
General and Administrative 695,73 - - 2,460 698,250
Sanitation 13,742 - - - 13,742
Streets 5,710,342 1,111,712 - {327,118) 6,494,936
Maintenance 210,089 18,875 - (11,000) 217,964
Bridges System 6,976,316 165,234 - - " 7,143,550
Highways System 244 063,639 12,635 - {458,000} 243,618,274
Total Public Works 257,671,919 1,308,456 - (793,649) 258,186,726
Culiure and Recreation:
Senior Citizens 3,878,743 - - - 3,878,743
Recreation 23,105,135 670,281 - 149,559 23,924,975
Bays Mountain 2,280,080 - 356,987 - (115,000} 5,000 2,627,067
Allandale 1,276,768 176,000 - (272,248) 1,180,520
Library 8,296,741 9,896 - - 8,306,737
Total Culture and Recrealion 38,937,467 1,213,264 {115,000 (117,689) 39,918,042
Education 103,578,847 8,805,135 (83.915) 415,954 112,716,021
Tota! Govemmental Funds Capital Assets 3 423693804  $21603448 _§ (748,915) $ - § 444,548,337

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to govemmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in the intemal
senvice fund are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of intemal service funds are included as govemmental activities

in the statement of net assets.

See Independent Auditors’ Repaort.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Kingsport, Tennessee's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures and required supplementary information says about the government's overall financial
health.

Contents: : ‘ Page

Financial Trends
Tables 1 - 6 contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
govemment's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

150

Revenue Capacity
Tables 7 -10 contain information to help the reader assess the govermniment's
most significant local revenue source, the property tax. 158

Debt Capacity
Tabies 11 - 15 present information to help the reader assess the affordability

of the govemment's current levels of outstanding debt and the govemnment's

ability to issue additional debt in the future. 162

Demographic and Economic Information
Tables 16 - 17 offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the govemment's financial
activities take place. 167

Operating Information
Tables 18 - 27 contain service and infrastructure data fo help the reader
understand how the information in the government's financial report relates
{o the services the govemment provides and the activities it performs.

169

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from
the comprehensive annual financial repori for the relevant year.
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_ Table 8
CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
PROPERTY TAX RATES (per $100 assessed value)
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Oveﬂapj)irg Rates

Fiscal Year
Ended June  City Direct Sullivan Hawkins

30 Rates County County
1999 $ 239 % 258 § 3.00
2000 2.39 2.58 3.00
2001 2.39 263 3.00
2002 222 2.35 2.41
2003 229 235 2.41
2004 229 235 2.41
2005 2.29 267 253
2006 2,26 2.53 2.68
2007 .2.26 253 2.35

2008 2.30 253 2.61
Source: City of Kingsport Finance Department

Note: Overlapping rates are those of county governments that
apply to property owners within the City of Kingsport.

159



CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS NOTED

Table 9

Total Taxable Assessed Value:

FYE 2008 (Tax Year 2007)
FYE 1999 (Tax Year 1998)

1,285,895,628
957,520,326

Source: City of Kingsport Finance Department
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2008 1998
PerCentage Percentage
. of Total of Total |
Taxable Taxable
Taxable Assegsed Taxable Assessed
Taxpayer Assessed Value Rank Value Assessed Value Rank Value

Eastman Chemical Company $ 349,026,433 1 271% $ 303,308,828 1 31.7%
Wellmont Health System/ ‘

Holston Valley Health Care 19,615,786 2 1.5% 4,479,372 9 0.5%
Domtar, Inc (Weyerhauser Co/

Willamette Industries) 17,696,589 3 1.4% 15,492,729 3 1.6%
Kingsport Power Company 14,382,508 4 1.1% 13,789,133 5 1.4%
Fort Henry Mall 13,278,122 5 1.0% 10,212,289 7 1.1%
Mountain States Health / HCA 9,747,838 6 0.8% 17,116,247 2 1.8%
Wal Mart Properties/Real Estate 9,388,720 7 0.7% 0.0%
Sprint/United Inter-Mountain

Telephone Southeast 9,049,673 8 0.7% 14,319,098 4 1.5%
Eastman Credit Union 8,653,328 9 0.7% 0.0%
AGC America, Inc 6,652,163 10 0.5% 5,253,902 8 0.5%
Quebecor 0.0% 12,805,409 6 1.3%
Crosscreek 0.0% 3,455,240 10 0.4%

Totals $ 457,491,160 35.5% $ 400,232,247 41.8%
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Qutstanding Applicable Debt
Debt Repaid with Property Taxes:
Net Direct Debt:
City of Kingsport $ 74,655000 100.00% $ 74,655,000
Total Direct Debt 74,655,000 100.00% 74,655,000
Overlapping Debt:
Sullivan County 36,610,000 41.33% 15,130,913
Hawkins County 52,398,000 6.30% 3,301,074
Subtotal, Overiapping Debt 89,008,000 47.63% 18,431,987
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 163,663,000 $ 93,086,987

Sources:
-City of Kingsport Finance Department
-County Governments

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic
boundaries of the city. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those
overlapping govemments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the City of
Kingsport. This process recognizes that, when considering the govemment's ability to issue
and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses
should be taken into account, However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident,
and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overiapping government.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS NOTED

Fiscal Year
Function 2007 2008
Education:
Studert Transportation;
Miles 368,869 377,916
Average Daily Ridership 1,949 1,943
Public Safety;
Police:
Physical Arrests 3,206 3,348
Parking Citations : 3722 3,016
Traffic Citations 12,895 12,857
Calls for Service 47,934 48,981
Fire:
Calls for Service 5087 6,445
Inspections 3,403 2,899
Fire Loss $ 1471657 $ 1,565,342
Public Works:
Potholes Repaired 538 924
Streets Swept (linear miles) 7,853 6,339
Traffic Signal Maintenance Calls 650 547
Leaves Collected (Tons) 1,716 1,595
Parks and Recreation: .
Civic Auditorium Rentals 1,127 899
Civic Auditorium Attendance 54,219 70,197
Pool Attendance 27,652 25231
Participation in athletic events 180,766 187,561
Renaissance Center Rentals 1,908 1,870
Renaissance Center Attendance 181,650 198,575
Allandale Rentals 297 293
Allandale Visilors 29,808 23,591
K - Play Games Played 1,350 1,428
K - Play Attendance 91,145 97,320
Senior Center:.
Active Members 1,842 2,365
Average Daily Attendance 188 226
Bays Mountain Park:
Total Programs 1,667 1,259
Total Attendance 148,041 173,063
Library:
Total Circulation 206,586 210,476
Building Attendance 176,854 193,344
Water:
Average Daily Consumption in Gallons 14.5 mgd 14.6 mgd
Maximum Daily Capacity in Gallons 28.0 mgd 28.0 mgd
Water Taps 339 442
Sewer:
Average Daily Treatment in Gallons 8.8 mgd 8.8 mgd
Maximum Daily Plant Capacity in Gallons 12.4 mgd 12.4 mgd
Sewer Taps 187 206
Solid Waste:
Landfit Material Accepted (Tons) 24,434 32,574
Household Refuse Collected (Tons} 16,046 16,244
Recyclables Collected (Tons} 2,587 2,613
Golf Course:
Rounds of Golf 26,175 27,338

Source: Various City Departments
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS NOTED
Fiscal Year
Function 2007 2008
Education;
Student Transportation:
Buses 35 37
Public Safety:
Police:
Stations 1 1
Patrol Units 104 109
Motorcycle Units 1 1
Fire:
Stafions 6 6
Fire Trucks/Rescue Units 14 14
Public Works:
Streets (Miles) 429 434
Street Lights 8,921 9,031
Traffic Signals 103 102
Leisure Services:
Parks and Recreation:
Park Sites 17 17
Park Acreage 191 191
" Swimming Pools 2 2
Tennis Courts 8 8
Community Centers 5 5
Senior Citizens:
Senjor Center 1 1
Other Recreational Facilities:
Bays Mountain Park & Nature Center -Acreage 3,650 3,560
Hunter Wright Baseball Stadium - Acreage 54 54
School System:
Elementary Schools 7 7
Middle Schools 2 2
High Schools 1 1
Water and Sewer:
Water Mains (Miles) 750 817
Fire Hydrants 1,691 1,740
Sanitary Sewers (Miles) 515 515
Storm Sewers (Miles) 209 209
Solid Waste:
Collection Trucks 14 15
Golf Courses 1 1

Source: Various City Departments
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_ Table 21
CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE

UTILITY RATE STRUCTURE & NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS
June 30, 2008

Water Rates:
Inside City
First 1,000 gallons $ 3.36 per 1000 gal
Next 13,000 gallons $ 2.71 per 1000 gal
Next 35,000 galions $ 2.08 per 1000 gai
Over 50,000 gallons $ 1.43 per 1000 gal
QOutside City
First 1,000gallons $ 14.82 per 1000 gal
Next ©,000gallons $ 6.43 per 1000 gal
Next 10,000 gallons $ 5.82 per 1000 gal
Next 70,000 gallons $ 5.40 per 1000 gal
Next 100,000 gallons $ 442 per 1000 gal
Over 190,000 gallons 3 4.15 ‘per 1000 gal
Sewer Rates:
Inside City
Minimum charge $ 13.26 2,000 gal
Additional gallons $ 6.63 per 1000 gal
Qutside City
Minimum charge $ 16.24 2,000 gal
Additional gallons $ 8.12 per 1000 gal
Number of Customers: Inside City Qutside City
Water 19,473 14,534

Sewer - 18,731 1,795
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF UNACCOUNTED FOR WATER

June 30, 2008
(All amounts in gallons)

Table 22

Water Treated and Purchased:

Water Pumped (potable)
Water Purchased

Total Water Treated and Purchased

Accounted for Water:

Water Sold

Metered for Consumption
Fire Department(s) Usage
Flushing

Tank Cleaning/Filling
Street Cleaning

Bulk Sales

Water Bill Adjustments
Other

Total Accounted for Water
Unaccounted for Water

Percent Unaccounted for Water

Cost per 1,000 gallons of Water

Cost of Unaccounted for Water
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5,328,439,000

3,623,000

3,353,195,600
169,701,100
2,338,600
18,027,100
9,106,800
3,464,900

5,332,062,000

3,555,834,100
1,776,227,900
23.31%

$1.24

$2,202,523



CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
TOP TEN WATER CUSTOMERS
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Table 23

Revenue as %

of FY08
Customer Name Consumptian Revenue Water Sales

Eastman Chemical Company 703,357,100 $ 1,033,993 8.51%
Domtar Paper Company, LLC 65,867,000 108,998 0.90%
Wellmont Health System 61,517,200 90,500 0.74%
Royal Ordnance of North America, Inc. 47 477,800 68,940 0.57%
Pet Dairy, Inc. 42,578,600 62,055 0.51%
Kingsport Housing Authority 29,166,200 49,906 0.41%
AGC 21,533,800 43,646 0.36%
Indian Path Hospital 17,604,300 25,697 0.21%
Allandale Falls Apt, LLC 15,550,500 22,747 0.19%
MeadowView Conference Resort 12,518,100 19,298 0.16%

1,017,170,600 $ 1,525,780 12.56%

Source: City of Kingsport Finance Depariment
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Table 24
CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
TOP TEN SEWER CUSTOMERS
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Revenue as %

of FY08

Customer Name Consumption Revenue Sewer User Fees
Eastman Chemical Company 206,803,500 $ 1,371,541 11.20%
Wellmont Health Systems 43,663,400 289,508 2.36%
Pet Dairy, Inc. 30,353,100 201,293 1.64%
Kingsport Housing Authority 29,166,200 194,906 1.59%
Domtar Paper Company, LLC 15,998,000 106,122 0.87%
Altandale Falls Apt, LLC 15,550,500 103,100 0.84%
Model City Apts 12,024,500 79732 0.65%
Cross Creek Apartments, LLC 10,982,800 72,822 0.59%
Indian Path Hospital 10,626,600 70,454 0.58%
Cabana Apartments, Inc. 10,081,500 66,840 0.55%
385,240,100 $ 2,556,318 20.87%

Saurce: City of Kingsport Finance Department
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
SALARIES AND SURETY BONDS OF PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Tabie 26

ANNUAL AMOUNT OF

NAME TITLE SALARY SURETY BOND

John Campbell City Manager $ 146,197 3 5,000
J. Michael Billingsley City Attorney 108,175 -

James H, Demming City Recorder/Chief Financial Officer 99,961 385,000

Keith E. Smith City Treasurer 76,679 200,000
Richard Kitzmiller Director of Schools 142,450 -
Gale Osbormne Chief of Police 84,900 -
Dennis R. Phillips Mayor 3,000 -
Lary Munsey Vice-Mayor 2,400 -
Patrick W. Shull Alderman 2,400 -
C. Ken Marsh, Jr. Alderman 2,400 -
Benjamin K. Mallicote Alderman 2,400 -
Valernie Joh Alderman 2,400 -
Jantry Shupe Alderman 2,400 -

Source: City of Kingsport Finance Department
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Blackburn,
Childers &
Steagall, PLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS REGIONAL EXPERTISE - LOCAL SERVICE

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Fihancial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Kingsport
Kingsport, Tennessee

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Kingsport, Tennessee (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December
17, 2008. We did not audit the financial statements of the Emergency Communications District (the ECD), a
discretely presented component unit, which represents 16 percent, 22 percent, and 13 percent, respectively,
of the assets, net assets, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2008. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has
been furnished to us, and our opinion on the City's basic financial statements, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for the ECD, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General

of the United States.

Internal Contro) gver Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the basic financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal

control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the fimited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant

deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on

a timely basis.

A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the
entity’s ability to initate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement
of the entity's financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the
entity’s internat control. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting: 08-01, 08-02 and 08-

03.

8018 Sunset Drive, P.O. Box 3745, Johnson City, TN 37602-3745 (423) 282-4511 Fax (423) 283-4532

Johnson City
Kingsport 440 E. Sullivan Street, Kingsport, TN 37660 (423) 246-1725 Fax (423) 245-2839
Greeneville 1140 Tusculum Boulevard, Greeneville, TN 37745-4039 (423) 638-8516 Fax (423) 638-3361
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City of Kingsport, Tennessee

independent Auditors’ Report on Intemal Controi over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters

Page 2

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or
detected by the entity's internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph-of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal control that
might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies
that are also considered to be material weaknesses. Of the significant deficiencies listed above and described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we consider the following deficiency tobe a
material weakness in internal control over financial reporting: 08-01. -

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's basic financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and maternal effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated
December 17, 2008.

The City's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management. audit committee, federa! awarding
agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

BLACKBURN, CHILDERS & STEAGALL, PLC

December 17, 2008
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Blackburn,
Childers &
Steagall, PLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

REGIONAL EXPERTISE - LOCAL SERVICE

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

' Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance v'viih Requirements
Applicable to Each Major Program and on internal Contro! Over Compliance
in Accordance With OMB Circular A-133

Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Kingsport
Kingsport, Tennessee

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Kingsport, Tennessee (the City) with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008. The
City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermnment Audiling Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Govemnments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-1 33 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and matenal! effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the cicumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal

determination of the City's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requiremenis referred to above that are
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, reguiations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs.

in planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effectona major federal program in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not

express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance.

801B Sunset Drive, P.O. Box 3745, Johnson City, TN 37602-3745 (423) 282-4511 Fax (423) 283-4532
' (423) 246-1725 Fax (423) 245-2839

Johnson City
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Greencville 1140 Tusculum Boulevard, Greeneville, TN 37745-4039 (423) 638-8516 Fax (423) 638-3361
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City of Kingsport, Tennessee

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance
in Accordance With OMB Circular A-133

Page 2

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that
adversely affects the entity's ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote
likelihood that noncampliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City's internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented or detected by the City's internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or matenal weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance that we consider to be matenal weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, audit committee, federal awarding
agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and shouid not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

Blackbarn hildper and Seagadl, fLC-

BLACKBURN, CHILDERS & STEAGALL, PLC

December 17, 2008
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Section | - Summary of Auditors’ Results
{As required by OME Circular A-133)

1.

The auditors' report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information (the financial staterments) of the City of
Kingsport, Tennessee (the City). We did not audit the financial statements of the Emergency
Communications District (the ECD) of the City, which represents 16 percent, 22 percent, and 13
percent, respectively, of the assets, net assets, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented
component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon
has been fumished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the ECD, is
based on the report of other auditors.

Three significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the statements are reported in the Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs. Of these significant deficiencies, one is considered to be a material
weakness.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City were disclosed during
the audit.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are reported in
the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

The auditors' report on compllance for the major federal award programs for the City expresses an
unqualified opinion on alt major federal programs. '

No audit findings relative to the major federal award programs for the City are reported in this
Schedule.

The programs tested as major programs were as follows:

- CFDA
Program Number
Special Education Preschool Grants 84.173
Individuals with Disabilities Education (IDEA) 84.027
National School Breakfast Program 10.553
National School Lunch Program 10.655
Federal Transit Administration 20.205
Federal Transit Administration 20.207
Federal Transit Administration 20.507

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

9. The City was determined to be a low risk auditee.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Section il - Findings — Financial Statement Audit

Current Year Findings

08-01 Material Weakness: Industrial Development Board of Kingsport, Tennessee (IDBK}

Condition: During the fiscal year 2008 audit, it was noted that the client’s practice was to net revenue and
expense accounts and not record revénue or expenses related to the sale of property.

Criteria: In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), revenues and expenses
should be reported at gross. In addition, the accounting records should reflect the complete effects of all
transactions.

Effect: Multiple matenal audit adjustments were necessary in order to present the IDBK's financial
statements on the full accrual basis and in accordance with GAAP.

Recommendation: Due to the increased volume and complexity of transactions encountered during the
current fiscal year and their effects on financial reporting within the IDBK's books, we recommend that the
IDBK expand their internal controls for financial reporting surrounding the entity’s monitoring function.
Specifically, we recommend that the IDBK send monthly financiais and the supporting general ledger to the
City Recorder for review and approval. This compensating control should aid in preventing the accumulation
of improper adjustments.

Management's Comments: The Board concurs with and agrees to implement the above recommendation to
send monthly financials and the supporting general ledger to the City Recorder for review and approval. Due
to the increased volume of financial activity and relating accounting transactions to our ledger and the City's
ledgers, increased communications, documentation and oversight is welcomed.

08-02 Significant Deficiency: Capital Assets Management

Condition: During the fiscal year 2008 audit, we observed that there appears to be a significant lack of
communication between management and accounting staff regarding policies and procedures surrounding the
accounting for capital assets. In addition, it appears that there are no controls in place which are designed to
verify that disposals are removed, that all additions are recorded, or that asset impairments are considered
and calculated.

Criteria: Communication between management and accounting staff should be such that staff understand
their responsibilities and assigned duties and are adequately trained to perform their job functions without
significant errors or difficulty. In addition, communication between the Finance Departmentand various other
City departments should be adeguate to allow for the timely recording of asset disposals, additions and
impairments.

Effect: |t was noted that internal controls and review procedures were ineffective to the extent that categornes
of asset additions were sometimes recorded in the wrong general ledger accounts, such as software being
recorded as equipment. This control deficiency increases the likelihood that capital assets could be
significantly misstated if assets are inaccurately categorized or if disposals, additions or impairments are not
recorded.
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED CQSTS
For the Year Ended June 30. 2008

08-02 Significant Deficiency: Capital Assets Management (Continued)

Recommendation: We recommend that management coordinate with accounting staff to obtain additional
training for their assigned duties in order to understand all aspects of their specific accounting area.
Management should clearly communicate the expectations for each function's processes and verify these
expectations with the responsible accounting staff periodically. In order to promote the timely recording of
asset additions, disposals and impairments, management should circulate asset listings to the responsible
department heads for verification that all assets listed therein are still in service. The department heads
should also communicate any new assets not included in the listing to the Finance Department to be added.
The City should consider having department heads sign or initial these listings and retumn them to the Finance
Department whether or not changes are required in order to indicate that they have, indeed, reviewed them.
Citywide assets should be reviewed periodically for impairment and adjusted accordingly.

Management's Comments: We are aware that capital asset management has been given a lower priority
over the last few years. This was a result of staff changes, duty reassignments, and concentrating efforts on
areas that needed more immediate attention. Although we have relied on City departments to communicate
asset disposals to us, we have procedures in place to review checks over $5,000 to try and capture asset
purchases monthly. The Finance Department already has a project planned to use the new intemal audftor to
assist the accountant in an inventory of fixed assets. This inventory will be used as the starting point for better
controls. This joint project will be completed before next fiscal year end.

08-03 Significant Deficiency: Payroll Processing

Condition: It appears that payroll processing duties are not sufficiently delegated among available personnel
and that payroli personnel have electronic access to both payroll and human resources data.

Criteria: Payroll processing duties should be segregated to the greatest extént possible among available
personnel and access to electronic payroil and human resources data should be regulated through the use of
electronic system controls.

Effect: Segregation of duties within the payroll function is insufficient as evidenced by the fact that both City
and school payroll personnel appear to have access to and are able to edit electronic data related to both the
payroll and human resources functions. This control deficiency increases the likelihood that the electronic
system could be manipuiated either from the human resources or from the payroll aspect.

Recommendation: In order to implement effective segregation of duties and communicate individual roles
and responsibilities, the City should finalize and approve an accounting policies and procedures manual. We
understand that the City has made significant progress in the compilation of accounting duties and processes,
though a formal approved manual has yet to be completed. In addition, the City's accounting personnel
should collaborate with information services to develop electronic system controls which should aid in the
implementation of proper segregation of duties.

Management's Comments: Management wili work with the Finance Department, Payroli, Human Resources
and Information Services to determine the most effective and efficient controls to implement. These controls
will be documented in the accounting policies and procedures manual before it is finalized. A project is
already being worked on that will increase segregation of duties at the school level. This project will have
individual schools completing their own time entry similar to how City departments currently enter their own
time,
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CITY OF KINGSPORT, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Prior Year Findings Implemented

The following prior year findings have been corrected to our satisfaction:

Finding 07-01 — Post-Closure Client Adjusting Journal Entries

Finding 07-02 —_Preparation of Governrnent-Wide Adjustments and Financial Statements

Finding 07-03 — Proper Review and Documentation of Client Adjusting Journal Entries
Finding 07-04 — Tracking of Capita! and Non-Capital Expenditures

Section lll - Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Programs Audit

Current Year Findings

There were no findings.

Prior Year Findings Implemented

There were no prior year findings.
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